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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHmESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, | am
pleased to present to you our annual results and business review of
our Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We have experienced a correction on Hong Kong property market in
early 2016 which has turned active and energetic again during the
current financial year. The property price has rebounded and The
Centa-City Leading Index has reached its highest record, showing
that the property market nowadays in Hong Kong is boiling hot and
high rocketing. Our mortgage loan business was also benefited from
this persistent high demand on mortgages that our loan portfolio has
reached its highest record at HK$819.0 million, representing an
increase of 21.5% as compared to the last year of HK$674.1 million.

However, the market competition is still keen and highly competitive.
According to the statistics from the Registrar of Money Lenders, the
number of money lenders licensees has reached to over 1,800 as at
31 March 2017, increased by more than 50% as compared to the time
when we began listing our Shares in October 2013. Further, external
and non-controllable factors such as anticipated rise of interest rate in
the United States of America, periodic new measures from the Hong
Kong Government to increase the stamp duty on sales and purchase
of properties, etc. have led us to be more cautious when managing
our mortgage loan business. Although we have expanded our
mortgage loan portfolio, at the same time, we considered prudent and
cautious approach were still necessary and essential during the time
of unstable and uncertain economic environment. The above would
unavoidably affected our financial performance for the current year
that our net interest margin pressurised to 12.0% as compared to
14.3% attained in last year, which also decreased our interest income
to HK$103.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing a
decrease of 6.8% as compared to last year. Our profit and total
comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of our
Company was also decreased by 3.7% to HK$46.3 million.

Although the current economy and property market in Hong Kong are
still challenging with full of uncertainities which require us to maintain
more financial resources for our mortgage loans business, to reward
and express gratitude to our Shareholders for their continuous
support, the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.1 cents per share. Including an interim dividend of HK1.6 cents
per share paid during the year, total dividends paid and payable for
the year ended 31 March 2017 would be HK2.7 cents per share.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHmES

The HKMA continues to impose stringent policies and prudential
measures on property mortgage loans provided by authorised
financial institutions in Hong Kong, which, coincidentally, gives us
more business opportunities to expand our mortgage loan business.
Although the recent property market in Hong Kong is boiling hot and
skyrocketing, it is generally doubtful about the persistent growth in the
property price. Further, the above-mentioned financial uncertainties
still create burdens and hurdles on our mortgage loan business. As
we are professional and highly experienced in our mortgage loan
business, we believe the current challenge could give us an
opportunity to consolidate and to expand our mortgage loan business
and portfolio. Periodical prudent measures and tight credit policy were
important and essential during the current year and they are expected
to be attained during the current economy which is full of challenges
and uncertainties.

Apart from our core mortgage loan business, to further expand our
money lending business and to capture and enlarge our market
shares and segments in this money lending industry, we have
diversified and soft-launched our new personal loan product under the
young and easy-recognised brand name “EasyLend” in the last
quarter of the year. This new launch represents a new era for us to
expand our new position in the money lending market. Certain
amounts of resources have already been injected and invested in our
personal loan business such as system formulation and integration,
human resources, information technology, etc. and these investments
and commitments are expected to be continued in the foreseeable
future. Although EasyLend is still at early stage which produced
insignificant influence on our Group’s operating results for the current
year, based on our professionalism in money lending market, and on
our capital investment in this personal loan business, we strongly
believe that EasyLend could grow with fruitful results which would
increase our interest income and margin and the profitability of our
Group in the foreseeable future.

Last but not least, to finance our money lending business, we shall
continue to source different financial resources to maintain our cost of
funding and net interest margin at a justifiable level. We shall continue
to channel more resources and effort in advertising and enhancing our
brand images and awareness and to promote and develop our
products and services. We are confident in our business
diversification and expansion and the growth of interest income and
its yield that will create sound financial results and performance for our
shareholders and stakeholders in years to come.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHmESE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere and heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders for their unwavering support to our
Group. | would also like to express my appreciation to the
management and all of our employees for their long-standing loyalty,
diligence and contributions to the success of our Group over the past
years which helped us achieve our fruitful results. We will enhance our
performance to the best of our ability and will produce a more
promising result and a great business expansion for a brighter future.

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR B R A S AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group has been established for more than 20 years and since our
establishment, we have principally engaged in the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong under
MLQO. During the year, we still principally focused on our property
mortgage loans business under our well-known and highly recognised
brand name “Hong Kong Finance”.

The property market in Hong Kong has experienced a correction in
early 2016 but has rebounded both in property price and transaction
volume and has turned active and energetic again during the year.
The Centa-City Leading Index has reached its highest record, showing
that the property market nowadays in Hong Kong is boiling hot and
skyrocketing. As it is generally doubtful about the persistent growth in
the property price, and having considered the rising interest rate in the
United States of America and the keen and competitive mortgage loan
market, we believe the property market will remain challenging and full
of uncertainties. A prudent and cautious approach for conducting our
mortgage loan business is therefore still necessary and essential for
the current year.

To minimise the potential credit and default risks in our mortgage
loans and interest receivables, we continued to tighten our credit
policy when granting mortgage loans to our customers and to re-
balance and adjust our mortgage loan portfolio by providing more
first-mortgage loan products to our high net worth customers with
sound quality and credit history. Although the above prudent
measures helped us to maintain the overall credit quality of our
mortgage loan portfolio, they unavoidably affected our financial
performance for the current year. Our interest income decreased by
HK$7.6 million or 6.8% to HK$103.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. Our net interest margin also down to 12.0% as compared
to 14.3% attained last year. However, the demand for mortgage loan
product remained strong and we still proactively expanded our
mortgage loan portfolio during the year. Our loans receivable
increased to HK$819.0 million (net of provision) as at 31 March 2017,
as compared to HK$674.1 million (net of provision) as at 31 March
2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1R B R A S AT

We consider that although the property market in Hong Kong is
rocketing in terms of property price and it seems that such rise will
continue without any sign of ceasing and turning backward, some
external and non-controllable factors such as anticipated rise of
interest rate, periodic new measures from the Hong Kong Government
to increase the stamp duty on sales and purchase of properties, etc.
have led us to be more cautious when managing our mortgage loan
business. Although we shall continue to expand our mortgage loan
portfolio, we consider the above prudent measures are necessary
during the time of unstable and uncertain economic environment and
these measures would produce a more solid and healthy position in
our mortgage loan business which would compensate the impact on
our net interest income and mortgage loan portfolio.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Since 1 December 2016, to combat the problem of illegal and
unreasonable fees charged to borrowers by fraudsters who claim
themselves as financial intermediaries for money lending, the Hong
Kong Government has imposed additional licensing conditions on
money lenders to (i) facilitate effective enforcement of the statutory
ban on separate fee charging by money lenders and their connected
parties; (ii) ensure better protection of privacy of the intending
borrowers; (iii) enhance transparency and disclosure; and (iv) promote
the importance of prudent borrowing.

Unlike other market players in money lending industry, we do not
place substantial reliance on financial intermediaries to refer mortgage
loan business to our Group. Further, to the best of our knowledge, our
Group has complied with these additional licensing conditions in all
material aspects, and that our Directors did not aware of any matter
that might come to their attention that our money lenders licence
would be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed in the
foreseeable future because of these additional licensing conditions.

We have also assessed and are of the view that these new additional
licensing conditions in connection with financial intermediaries have
created minimal impact on our money lending business. Even when
financial intermediaries were to be appointed, we would carefully and
cautiously select these financial intermediaries and we would strictly
follow those requirements under the new additional licensing
conditions so that we could provide reliable and legal loan products to
our customers. Our Group will continue to co-operate with the
government and other authorities in order to fight against such illegal
financial intermediaries and to uphold the reputation of financial
institutions and money lenders.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR B R A S AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our interest income from money lending business of providing
property mortgage loans in Hong Kong decreased by HK$7.6 million
or 6.8% from HK$111.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
HK$1083.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2017. Such decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in the interest margin as a result of
the above-mentioned prudent measures carried out by our Group to
maintain the overall credit quality of our mortgage loan portfolio.

Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties increased by
100.0% to HK$10.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
Nil). The fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
reflected upward revaluation of the commercial and residential
properties held by our Group during the year.

Administrative expenses

We incurred administrative expenses of HK$38.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$36.4 million), which mainly
comprised employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing
expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment, provision
for impairment assessment and other miscellaneous expenses. The
amounts increased mainly due to the increases in provision for
impairment and written off of loans receivable and miscellaneous
expenses.

Finance costs

We incurred finance costs of HK$22.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$19.3 million), which mainly comprised interest
on interest bearing bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary, and issue of bonds. The increase in the finance costs by
HK$2.9 million or 15.0% was mainly attributable to the increase in
secured bank borrowings which incurred additional interests during
the year.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin of our money lending business decreased
from 14.3% for the last year to 12.0% for the year ended 31 March
2017. The prudent measures on our mortgage loan business, which
we have mentioned above, and the increase in our cost of finance led
to a decrease in net interest margin accordingly.

Profit and total comprehensive income
As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 attributable to owners of
our Company achieved HK$46.3 million and HK$48.1 million,
respectively, representing a decrease of 3.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1R B R A S AT

LIQUIDITY AND SOURCES OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
During the year ended 31 March 2017, our Group’s operations and
capital requirements were financed principally through retained
earnings, loans or advances from our controlling shareholder, Tin
Ching Industrial, as well as banks and other borrowings, and the issue
of bonds. Based on our current and anticipated levels of operations,
barring unforeseenable market conditions, our future operations and
capital requirements will be financed through loans from banks or
other financial institutions that are independent third parties, retained
earnings, proceeds from the issue of the bonds and our share capital.
We had no significant commitments for capital expenditure during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, cash and cash equivalent amounted to HK$15.3
million (2016: HK$20.8 million); amount due to a fellow subsidiary
amounted to HK$69.7 million (2016: HK$89.0 million); interest bearing
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$315.8 million (2016:
HK$179.3 million), and bonds amounted to HK$113.8 million (2016:
HK$111.5 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, all interest bearing bank
borrowings were repayable on demand and were secured by our
Group’s investment properties, land and buildings, certain properties
mortgaged to our subsidiary and corporate guarantee of our
Company. The amount due to a fellow subsidiary and the other
borrowings were unsecured, interest bearing at a rate ranging from
6.0% to 7.0% per annum and with fixed term of repayment. The bonds
were unsecured, interest bearing at their respective pre-determined
interest rate ranging from 4.5% to 6.0% per annum, and were
repayable upon 7 years of its maturity.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, none of our banking facilities
were subject to any covenants relating to financial ratio requirements
or any material covenants that restrict our Group to undertake
additional debt or equity financing. As at 31 March 2017, our unutilised
banking facilities and other unutilised facility available to our Group for
drawdown amounted to HK$1.8 million and HK$80.3 million,
respectively. It is our Group’s policy to prioritise the utilisation of our
available facilities which offer the lowest finance cost to our Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, our bonds were subject to
covenants relating to financial ratio requirements, such as interest
coverage ratio, current ratio and debt to equity ratio.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO
The following table sets forth the key financial ratios of our Group
during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017 respectively:

FEMKLER
AR R B AN & B 5 Rl R ELE 2016 6F [ 2017
FIANBIFEZ 2B E

As at 31 March

M3HA31H
2017 2016
20175 2016 4F
Current ratio (" RENEL RO 2.04 2.24
Gearing ratio @ BEHLXRE 0.97 0.78
For the year ended 31 March
HESAIALEE
2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
Net interest margin ratio® FEELERO 12.0% 14.3%
Return on equity ratio AR [B] 3 2= @) 9.3% 10.4%
Interest coverage ratio © FEBEEO 3.0 times & 4.0 times &%
Notes: BEE -

(1) Current ratio was calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the respective year-end date.

(2)  Gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the total
interest bearing bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary and the bonds, less cash and cash equivalents) by total
equity as at the respective year-end date.

(3) Net interest margin ratio was calculated by dividing net interest income
(being the interest income net of finance costs) by the monthly average
balance of mortgage loan receivables at the respective year-end date.

(4) Return on equity ratio was calculated by dividing profit and total
comprehensive income for year attributable to owners of the Company
by the total equity as at the respective year-end date.

(5) Interest coverage ratio was calculated by dividing profit before finance
costs and income tax expenses (excluding fair value gains on revaluation
of investment properties) by the finance costs for the corresponding
year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Our Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

IMPORTANT EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Our Group did not have any important events affecting our Company
and our subsidiaries since the end of the financial year ended 31
March 2017 and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1R B R A S AT

COMPLIANCE WITH MONEY LENDERS ORDINANCE

Our Group is required to and has, at all time, strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations. In the opinion of our Directors, in
addition to the Listing Rules, MLO constituted a significant influence
on our Group’s money lending business during the year.

The MLO is the principal statute which governs the money lending
business in Hong Kong. Our money lending business has been
conducted through the subsidiaries of our Company, HK Finance and
Easylend Finance. Since the first granting of money lenders licence to
HK Finance and EasylLend Finance, we have never received any
objection from and have never been investigated by the Registrar of
Money Lenders nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the renewal
of the money lenders licence. During the year, the money lenders
licence of HK Finance was successfully renewed on 31 May 2016, and
subsequent to 31 March 2017, we have successfully renewed the
licences of HK Finance and of EasyLend Finance on 15 June 2017
and 25 April 2017, respectively.

To the best of our knowledge, our Group has complied with the MLO
in all material aspects, and that our Directors did not aware of any
matter that might come to their attention that our money lenders
licence would be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed in
foreseeable future.

CUSTOMERS

During the year, our customers comprised individuals and
corporations in Hong Kong and were all independent third parties
(within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), which were
not connected persons or senior management to our Group. We
granted loans to these customers on the basis of the properties that
they offered to mortgage to us as security for the loans provided by
us.

During the year, our top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 20.0% (2016: 19.0%)
of our total revenue and our single largest customer accounted for
approximately 6.0% (2016: 6.0%) of our total revenue.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2017, our Group employed 40 full time employees.
The total staff costs of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
were HK$15.8 million (2016: HK$15.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR B R A S AT

Our Group relies on our remuneration policy on the position, duties
and performance of our employees. The remuneration of our
employees may include salary, overtime allowance, bonus and various
subsidies. We conduct performance appraisals on an annual basis.
Our Company has also adopted a share option scheme on 4
September 2013, the purpose of which is to provide incentives to our
employees who made contributions to our Group and with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. No share option was granted during the year. As
at 31 March 2017, 19,150,000 share options were outstanding which
represents approximately 4.6% of the issued ordinary shares of our
Company.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, our land and buildings of HK$79.6 million (2016:
HK$59.3 million), our investment properties of HK$64.5 million (2016:
HK$76.9 million) and certain properties mortgaged to our subsidiary
with aggregate fair values of these properties of approximately
HK$273.5 million were secured for the Group’s bank borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the business activities of our Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Our Directors did not consider our
Group was exposed to any significant foreign exchange risks. Our
Group did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge against
the volatility associated with foreign currency transactions and other
financial assets and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of
business.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2017, our Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2016: Nil).

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS

For our mortgage loan business, as discussed above, although the
recent property market in Hong Kong is boiling hot and skyrocketing,
the financial uncertainties such as the anticipated rise of interest rate,
government measures and policies, keen competition, etc. still create
burdens and hurdles on our mortgage loan business. As we are
professional and highly experienced in our mortgage loan business,
we believe the current challenge could give us an opportunity to
consolidate and to expand our mortgage loan business and portfolio.
Periodical prudent measures and tight credit policy were important
and essential during the Year and they are expected to be attained
during the current economy with full of challenge and uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1R B R A S AT

Apart from our core mortgage loan business, to further expand our
money lending business and to capture and enlarge our market
shares and segments in this money lending industry, we have
diversified and soft-launched our new personal loan product under the
young and easy-recognised brand name “EasyLend” in the last
quarter of the current year. This new launch represents a new era for
us to expand our new position in the money lending market. Certain
amounts of resources have already been injected and invested in our
personal loan business such as system formulation and integration,
human resources, information technology, etc. and these investments
and commitments are expected to be continued in the foreseeable
future. Although EasyLend is still at early stage which produced
insignificant influence on our Group’s operating results for the current
year, based on our professionalism in money lending market, and on
our capital investment in this personal loan business, we strongly
believe that EasyLend could grow with fruitful results which would
increase our interest income and margin and the profitability of our
Group in the foreseeable future.

Last but not least, to finance our money lending business, we shall
continue to source different financial resources to maintain our cost of
funding and net interest margin at a justifiable level. We shall continue
to channel more resources and effort in advertising and enhancing our
brand images and awareness, and to promote and develop our
products and services. We are confident in our business
diversification and expansion and the growth of interest income and
its yield that will create sound financial results and performance for our
shareholders and stakeholders in years to come.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the year, our Group faced a number of risks and uncertainties
which might have affected our Group’s financial performance and
conditions, results of operations and our growth potential. Some of
these risks and uncertainties which were significant to our Group for
current year are set out below. Risks and uncertainties other than
those outlined below may not be material for the current year but
could become material in the future.

Financial risk

Our Group’s activities are exposed to various types of financial risks
such as market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Our Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on our Group’s financial
performance. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the
respective risk management measures during the year are elaborated
in Note 3.1 “Financial risk factors” to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

14

BREDIEBERER 2N - RE—FEFEET
MBS AFREARNEERETEZ TS
MERDE  HARANFRERE -—FUNFER
SRPE [ BEH | e Z T CEHERTLA
ERER  SEMLRBETSHEERHT
® e BACRARKREETERRLARRE
% Pl REA ARG - ANBREEME
% WHEMRA REREBIEEZERER
AE - BE S EANAFENERESREEM
HAKEEEXETEEN  BERRMAHK
BEMB2EXRAREMAEREH 2 ELRK
B BIREZEHTN T AR RANEEE
REAEE 2 MESWARFBIARBREES

Ri& - RABTHEEHRTES - HASH#
BOETRANBER #RAEESKANF
BEKRF - RPIFERERNEZERRANE
TESER UREmREEYEEMBE - Ak
BERBERETERLRS - RARE - ZH%%
TUE R M IESR A KA B ASE R REACRA R
ARBEHEERRMBEEENKRT - LER
REFE

FTERBRAABEE

RAEER AKEEHZEAREZEAESE
MBRBRMN - EERBARIBRE N 2R
SRTHARE  NAFRHEAEENSBE
RZZEBHRERETARREHN T > T
SRt A SN 2 BB B AN BREA A =R AN F E I
REKXN - HEAERARBESEXN -

B35 B

AEE XBEB AT ZEPBRAR - mi5RE
R(BRATRELRAFENXAR)  FER
BERBESRR - AREZ BEERER
SFINEMMIBGZ AR YBNEE
AR EL A] B S AN SR [ B A5 R IR IE K 2 TR
& AR LAY BRRERIEAFERERR
EIRIE I < A BN A R & M R M RES A
[ REEREE] AR -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of actual losses in values caused by the
events that these actual losses arise from due to the inadequacy of or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events
(including legal risk), which differ from the expected losses. Our
executive Directors are responsible for determining an overall
operational risk control framework, devising and updating policies and
procedures that are adequate to control these operational risks. Our
executive Directors meet regularly to review operational issues,
conduct sample checks on our loan files for proper security
documentation. Our senior management is responsible for supervising
the day-to-day adherence of operational control procedures and
maintenance of security documentation. We also provide training to
our employees on our policies and procedures, as well as update
them of current legislation and practices. We have formulated credit
monitoring policies and operational procedures (which are
continuously updated) to ensure that our employees comply with our
internal procedures and requirements.

Market risk

The performance of our money lending business may be affected by
the changes in economic conditions, business environment and
property market in Hong Kong. Our executive Directors are
responsible for determining an overall market risk control framework,
monitoring and assessing market conditions and devising refined
policies in light of the above adverse factors affecting our Group’s
performance and market position. Our senior management is
responsible for making sure that the policies so developed are duly
implemented and executed.

Valuation of pledged collaterals and investment properties
We have granted our secured mortgage loans to our customers based
on the values of the properties that these customers can mortgage to
us as collaterals. Therefore, any fluctuation of the values of these
collaterals of our customers will affect both the amount of our
mortgage loans granted and the risk of recovering the full amount of
mortgage loans in the event of default. These will in turn affect our
interest income and the amount of provision for impairment
assessment. We will closely monitor the safety margin of our mortgage
loans and assess the relevant risk from time to time. Our loan officers
will also assess our mortgage loans individually to see whether such
amount of mortgage loans can be fully recovered with reference to the
loan repayment ability of that customer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ADVANCES TO THE ENTITIES

During the year, we had made several announcements for advances
to entities and there was one discloseable announcement for
advances to entity remained outstanding as at 31 March 2017, which
is required to be included in this annual report in accordance with the
Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in our announcement dated 23 March 2017 (the
“Announcement”), HK Finance, as lender, entered into loan
agreements with customer A, customer B and customer C (collectively
as the borrowers), whom customer A and customer B are corporations
directly-owned by customer C. Pursuant to the loan agreements, HK
Finance granted four secured loans (the “Loans”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$70.0 million to the borrowers for a term of
three months. The summarised information on the Loans is set out as
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Loan agreement A

Loan agreement B

T

Loan agreement C

Loan agreement D

EXMBZEA EXiB=EB ERin=EC ERB=ED
Date of Agreement 23 March 2017 23 March 2017 23 March 2017 23 March 2017
[iEASk 201743A23H 20173 H23H 201743 A 23H 201743 A 23R

Borrowers

Principal

N

Interest rate
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Customer A, customer B
and customer C
EPA -BFBREFC

HK$30.0 million
30,000,000/ 7T

0.83334% per month (i.e.
10.0% per annum) or The
Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation
Limited prime rate plus
5.0% per annum, and
payable monthly in arrears
5 AF%0.83334 E (A4
MEA0.02) kG F TR
BERELBELRTERD
Al & B B M X 5.0 &
g kAR -EAXH
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A
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Customer A, customer B
and customer C
EEA - BFBREFC
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2.25% per month (i.e.
27.0% per annum) or The
Hongkong and Shanghai
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22.0% per annum, and
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Customer A, customer B
and customer C
EFA - BFBREFC

HK$15.0 million
15,000,000 87T

0.83334% per month (i.e.
10.0% per annum) or The
Hongkong and Shanghai
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Customer A, customer B
and customer C
EPA -BFBREFC

HK$7.0 million
7,000,000/ 7T

2.25% per month (i.e.
27.0% per annum) or The
Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation
Limited prime rate plus
22.0% per annum, and
payable monthly in arrears
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Loan agreement A

Loan agreement B

Loan agreement C

Loan agreement D

EXHEA EXH#EB ERikEC EXHED

Term Repayable by 3 monthly Repayable by 3 monthly Repayable by 3 monthly Repayable by 3 monthly
interest of HK$250,000 interest of HK$405,000 interest of HK$125,000 interest of HK$157,500
each each each each
The borrowers shallhave  The borrowers shall have  The borrower shall have The borrowers shall have
an option to make early an option to make early an option to make early an option to make early
repayment of the whole or  repayment of the whole or  repayment of the whole or  repayment of the whole or
part of the loan after the part of the loan three part of the loan after the part of the loan three
date of loan drawdown months after the date of date of loan drawdown months after the date of
subject to the borrowers loan drawdown subjectto  subject to the borrowers loan drawdown subject to
giving HK Finance not less  the borrowers giving HK giving HK Finance not less  the borrower giving HK
than one calendar month’s  Finance not less than one  than one calendar month’s  Finance not less than one
advance notice in writing  calendar month’s advance advance notice in writing  calendar month’s advance

notice in writing notice in writing

FH NI ARE BN H3BRABE SHA HHMRARE §HN S3HERARE 5HN
£.250,000% 7T £.405,000% 7T £.125,000/8 7T £.157,500/8 7T
ERATERERNINENR BEHRAUEBERIMER BRATEERIMER ERATERRINER
AHERINEEZEER PHR-EARANEEZ BRERINERZZER BHE=EARINEEZ
ZEHKET D CE MR %E%Z£$Iﬂﬂﬁ ZEHRHE S GE MR %Eﬁiz&iﬂnﬁ
HRABREXRAEBEEE # HERABEERE ﬁAE$%ﬁE%F“¥ CEERARZEME
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Security An all-money first legal A subordinate legal Afirst legal charge/ A subordinate legal
charge/mortgage in favour  charge/mortgage in favour  mortgage in favour of HK  charge/mortgage in favour
of HK Finance in respect of  of HK Finance in respect of = Finance in respect of a of HK Finance in respect of
commercial properties commercial properties commercial property a commercial property
located at Hau Wong Road  located at Hau Wong Road  located at Yin Chong Street  located at Yin Chong Street
of Kowloon in Hong Kong,  of Kowloon in Hong Kong,  of Kowloon in Hong Kong,  of Kowloon in Hong Kong,
with valuation conducted  with valuation conducted  with valuation conducted  with valuation conducted
by an independent by an independent by an independent by an independent
professional property professional property professional property professional property
valuer with an aggregate ~ valuer with an aggregate ~ valuer with an amount of valuer with an amount of
amount of approximately amount of approximately approximately HK$28.0 approximately HK$28.0
HK$55.0 million HK$55.0 million million million
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The Loans were collaterised by a group of commercial properties
located in prime area in Hong Kong, with the then aggregate market
values of these collaterals of HK$83.0 million as determined by an
independent professional property valuer, of which we considered,
these collaterals were sufficient to ensure the recoverability of the
Loans. Based on our credit assessment, the granting of the Loans was
also determined with reference to the borrowers’ financial background,
the repayment history and ability of the borrowers, the collaterals the
borrowers provided, and the tenor and interest rates of the Loans.
Taking into account the relatively short term nature of the Loans and
the other factors as disclosed above in assessing the credit risks of
the Loans, we considered the credit risks involved in the Loans to the
borrowers were relatively low and a stable revenue and cashflow
stream from interest income was expected to be generated from the
Loans.

It was required under the Rule 13.15 of the Listing Rules to disclose
the identities of the borrowers. As we have made a request to the
borrowers for disclosure of the borrowers’ identities in the
announcement but the borrowers rejected the request and they were
not willing to disclose their identities in the announcement, we have
applied to the Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange has granted
to us a waiver from strict compliance with the requirements under Rule
13.15 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the above Loans are set out in our Company’s
announcement dated 23 March 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of our business and our Shareholders for enabling them
to evaluate how the principles of corporate governance have been
applied. The corporate governance principles of our Company
emphasize a quality board, sound internal controls, and transparency
and accountability to all Shareholders.

Our Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board had reviewed our
Company’s corporate governance policies. The Directors will carry out
a regular review and will propose any amendment, if and when
necessary, to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time
to time.

The below sets out the corporate governance principles and practices
adopted by the Group which indicate how the Group has applied
relevant principles in the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive directors, with a
variety and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business,
marketing, finance, investment and legal profession. During the year
and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board was as
follows:

Directors

E=

Exg

ExemE

EXCHAMANRESEN  BR=Z2NTE
ER=BBWIFATES - REFBEZHIH
BEEMkER BREST BAX 2H £
B REMEREX - RFARBEEARARER
B EESREKBIIEMT

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEEMERK

Executive Directors:
BITESE:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
PR E A
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board)
MABRE(EFSLE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
BT (TTHAEEL)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
BRIKER SE 4
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
RIS &

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
REIE T4

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Tse Pui To. The roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and exercised by different individuals.

During the year, the Chairman has met with all of three independent
non-executive Directors without the executive Directors present.
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Member of Remuneration Committee
HFNEZEEKE
Chairman of Nomination Committee

RAZEEXR

Chairman of Audit Committee
BEZELZEgER

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
YNEEEXRE

Member of Audit Committee
EBEZEZEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
RELZEEKE

Member of Audit Committee
EREZEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
FEZEEeKE

Member of Nomination Committee

REHEZEEKE
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Our Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules that the Board contains at least three independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board,
and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The independent non-executive directors have dedicated to
provide our Company with professional advice with respect to the
steady operation and development of our Company. They also
exercised supervision and coordination to safeguard the interests of
our Company and our Shareholders.

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (independent non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee) is regarded as the appropriate
person to fulfill such qualifications of having appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in
writing to our Company their independence in particularly in regard to
the requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the independent non-executive Directors are free from
any business or other relationship that may influence their exercise of
independent judgement and are considered to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The operation of the board

The Board’s main task is to supervise and direct the management of
our Company to operate under good corporate governance in order to
maximise value of our Shareholders while balancing the interest of our
various stakeholders.

The Board holds meetings to monitor the performance of our Company

as against the budget and to be briefed with market developments, to

discuss and decide on major corporate, strategic and operational

issues, and to appraise any good investment opportunities available.

The major duties performed by our Board are as follows:

1. setting our Company’s values and standards, the objectives of
our Company and responsibilities of the Board and its various
committees;

2. establishing the strategic direction for our Company;

3. setting targets for and monitoring the performance of the
management of our Group;

4.  supervising the annual and interim results of our Group;
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5. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective internal 5.
control is in place to assess and manage the risk of our Group
and implementing appropriate systems to manage these risks;

6. overseeing the relationships between our Company and our 6.

Shareholders, customers, the community, various government
authorities, interest groups and others who have a legitimate
interest in the responsible conduct of our Group’s business;

7. identifying and assessing any matters involving a conflict of 7.
interest for a substantial Shareholder or a Director;

8.  determining (if any and available) any material acquisitions and/ 8.
or disposals of assets, investments, capital, projects, authority
levels, major treasury policies, risk management policies and
key human resources issues; and

9.  considering and determining issues which are the responsibilities 9.
of the Board pursuant to our Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and the relevant laws and regulations in
force by which our Company is governed from time to time.
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The Board is also responsible for the following corporate governance EEZeMBEEREUTRESTARE

duties:

1. developing and reviewing our Company’s policies and practices 1.
on corporate governance and making recommendations on any
amendment or updates (if any);

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous 2.
professional development of Directors and our Company’s senior
management;

3. reviewing and monitoring our Company’s policies and practices 3.
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and 4.
compliance manual (if any) applicable to our Company’s
employees and Directors;

5. reviewing our Company's compliance with the CG Code and 5.
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under the CG
Code; and

6. being responsible for performing any other corporate 6.
governance duties and functions set out in the CG Code and the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time), or delegating the
responsibility to a committee or committees (if applicable).
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The Board delegates to the management of the Company in respect
of the major corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparation of the annual and interim results of the Group to be
approved by the Board;

2. giving clear directions to the management team as to their
powers of management, and circumstances in which the
management team should report back;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal control and risk
management procedures of the Group;

4. execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the Group
adopted by the Board; and

5. carrying out day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group, etc.

The Board members are required to meet regularly at least four times
a year. During the year, the Board members have met four times, and
have attended the annual general meeting of our Company. The
attendance of each Director at these meetings are stated as follows:

EZeHUTHAEEEZCEETERTAR
AIEEERRE

1. SESHESSMAEZAREFE RS
HiZRAE

2. HEREBRCEERNREERBEBARE
|2 B RE B IR

3. ENASEZARABPELKLERERE
HIFE

4. HTEFEMRMZIAEELERBR
T R

5. EAKEEERER  THRRLEST
f -

EXZeABFELBTOREREH - NF
N EFERECRTOREGHE  LHEAR
ARTZBERAFAE - ZSEFHFEZE R
ZERESIITE

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board meetings annual general
Members of the Board regularly held meeting held
BExE HERE
E%ﬁ b) BRRBEFAE
EEEHE SRETRE BITRE
Executive Directors:
BITES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam 4/4 1/1
PR e m ST A
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board) 4/4 1/1
RABSRE (EEFELE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
BB (TTHAEEL)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIUFHITES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond 4/4 1/1
PRILEE A&
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 4/4 1/1
Kiefls &
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 4/4 1/1
SREN & S
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Board meetings regularly held during the year were scheduled in
advance and notices of not less than fourteen days were given to all
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. Board papers
were circulated to Directors not less than three days in advance
before the date of a Board meeting to enable the Directors to be well
informed on matters to be raised and discussed at the Board
meetings. All Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

In addition, Directors at all times had full and timely access to all
information of our Group and may seek independent professional
advice at our Company’s expense in carrying out their functions, after
making a request to the Board.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, is the
brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam, and both of them are the executive
Directors and substantial Shareholders of the Company. The
biographies of the Chairman and the Directors are set out on in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”. Save as
disclosed on those pages as set out above or any pages in this annual
report, the Board members did not have any family, financial, business
or other material/relevant relationship with each other and in particular,
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer as
disclosed therein.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions have been published
on the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment and re-election of retiring Director

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company for an initial term of three years and is renewable
automatically for successive terms of three years, and each of the
independent non-executive directors has been appointed for an initial
term of two years and thereafter it may be extended for such period as
he and our Company may agree in writing.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chu
Yat Pang Terry (Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong (Independent Non-executive Director) will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Training and support for Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2017, briefings and reading materials
had been provided and funded by our Company to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills (including but not limited to
corporate governance matters and any development or updates on
the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements) as their
continuous professional development so as to keep abreast of their
collective responsibilities and to emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Directors had participated
in the continuous professional development as follows:

Directors

E=x

EEEZIIRIZE
HE2017F3A3MBIEFE  ARFERE
EREMNEAEER U AEGEER - N1
R EREFAE N (BEETRARE
BEARAEEURBE LEMAAREMEEEER
EZEMBRIZHER) EREE2HE
BERRE ERSRO THESEERS U
RRHETARESZ AR - BEKEE -

HBZE2017F3A31IHIEFE  EFLRHELT
BEEEER

Participated in
continuous professional
development programmes

Executive Directors:
BITESE:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
PR . e 52 A
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board)
RABERLE(EFST/E)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
WIRE R (TTHAEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond

BRIKER e 4

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

RIS =

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

REIE A

Our Company will also continuously update our Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices, and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

ARBTH LR REMEREERE 2
BRHERMHENGESR  BRRSETRIESR
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code to monitor the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by our Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee to oversee the relevant aspects of our Group’s affairs. The
three Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of our Company was established with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

During the year, the roles and functions of Audit Committee included:

(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving
the remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

(c) developing and implementing policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(d) monitoring the integrity of our Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

(e) reviewing our Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

(f)  discussing the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system;

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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(g) considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

(nh) reviewing our Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(i)  reviewing our external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

()  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

(k)  reporting to the Board on the matters set out above;

(I)  reviewing arrangements employees of our Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters as well as our
whistleblowing policy;

(m) acting as the key representative body for overseeing our
Company'’s relations with the external auditor; and

(n) considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities as required in
accordance with its terms of reference during the year ended 31
March 2017 and the major of which are stated as:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim results,
annual results and financial statements of our Company and of
our Group and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments, and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and financial
policies and practices of our Company;

3. reviewing the interim report, annual report, and results
announcements of our Company;

4.  considering and recommending to the Board for the re-
appointment of the Company’s independent external auditors;
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5. reviewing the connected transactions and discloseable

transactions; and

©

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal control
system and risk management of the Group, and reviewing the
works performed by the independent internal control advisor,
RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited (“RSM”), on the internal
control system and risk management.

The members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Chan Siu Wing
Raymond (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, all of them are independent non-executive
directors whereas Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held (with the attendance of our Company’s external
auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference), and all members had attended these
meetings during the aforesaid period with their respective record of
attendance as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of Audit
Members of the Audit Committee Committee meetings held
HERY BREEE
EREEENE SRETRE
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
RKKREE(FREZESTE)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 2/2
RIS k&=
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
REIE T4

The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of this annual report.
The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed with the
management and the external auditor of our Company the matters
regarding the internal controls and financial reporting including the
accounting principles and practices related to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,
and recommended them to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit services provided by our external auditor.
During the year, our Group has paid or payable to our external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the audit service in relation to the audit of
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 of HK$1,000,000 (2016: HK$950,000) and the non-audit service
in relation to the review of interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six-month ended 30 September 2016 of
HK$250,000 (30 September 2015: HK$250,000), totalling
HK$1,250,000 (2016: HK$1,200,000) in aggregate. The Audit
Committee considered that the non-audit service has no adverse
effect on the independence of the auditor. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(a) making recommendations to the Board on our Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy which
is being reviewed regularly;

(b) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(d) considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in our Group;

(e) reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(f)  reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(g) ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed (i) the remuneration packages and bonus of executive
Directors and our Company’s senior management in relation to the
terms of their service agreements and letters of appointment and in
accordance with the written remuneration policy of the Company
(which had been reviewed during the said year); and (ii) had assessed
the performance of executive Directors and the Company’s senior
management.

Our Company has adopted and the Remuneration Committee has
been delegated with responsibility by the Board to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
senior management of our Company.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chu Yat
Pang Terry (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Chan Koung Nam, an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, two meetings of the

Remuneration Committee were held and all members had attended
these meetings with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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Attendance/

Number of Remuneration
Committee meetings held
HERY, FHEES
BREMTRH

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIFHITES:
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
KW (FEESL/E)
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
SREE kA

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
PR A o A

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

30

2/2

2/2

2/2



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A A S/ E
TEEAME

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange,
respectively.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(a) determining the policy of the nomination of Directors during the
year and adopt the nomination procedures and the process and
criteria to select and recommend candidates for directorship;

(b) reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement our Company’s corporate strategy;

(c) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(d) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(e) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

() reviewing regularly the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness of these
policies and reviewing any progress on achieving those
objectives in these policies.

The members of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Chan Kwong
Yin William, an executive Director and Chairman of the Board
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, both are independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to (i) assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; (ii) review the re-appointment of retiring
Directors at the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company; (iii)
review the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and
determine the policy; and (iv) review the roles of the existing Directors
and ascertain whether any conflict of interests had been arisen for the
Directors.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held and all members had attended this meeting with
their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEERE

BZE2017F3A31HILEE  RELE2D
BiIT—Rkem 2ENEVELERAEE

mERBZHFRREET

Attendance/

Number of Nomination
Committee meeting held
HERY REEES
BREBEITRH

Executive Director:

BTES:

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

BRIBrRE(FEEZREEL/E)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

RIS k&=

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

REIE T4

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”, which requires the
Nomination Committee of our Company to review annually the
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board for achieving diversity to our Board members, so as to enhance
the quality of our performance. In relation to reviewing and assessing
the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee has considered a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will consider all the measurable objectives
that have been set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
as selection criteria for potential candidate to the Board. The Company
aims to build and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board that are considered beneficial to the
Company, and will regularly review the progress on achieving those
measurable objectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

32

11

11

RAZESSRERE D HINAR R R
U AT E R o

EEEMESTILERE

EEeCRMEFEXNEZTIBE] - K
RAREREEARUBFRIEFTSRE
AEC REZTTE AR - Yat (R0E R ) (£
REHEFENEZTEMBHESTSHELN
SR EBEE MBS ARFREAK
Fompi LAPRESESEKNE - REEE
SCEBEZHRAZ  BRETRRMUR - F

B XIERHEEES BEER XL A3
ARATE R 85 o
REZBEREREMANBITESEENES T

EBEMGIEZAFERR BREHEFS
KEZTE TREFEREZFER R
EESHREAZBEED - ARFREY M
HEVOEFTE@XNEZ B  WEHAR
AN - YR ERREREETEKNE ST
BRFEZEATERRZER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N EEEE A FR A=

PEERES

The Board diversity policy of the Company is as follows: RRREFSEKEZTTLERNT
Purpose B

This policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board.

Scope

This policy applies to the Board. It does not apply to diversity in
relation to the employees of the Company, nor the board of
directors and the employees of any subsidiary of the Company.

Vision

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in promoting good corporate
governance practice and maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Policy Statement

The Nomination Committee will review annually the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. In relation to
reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience.

Measurable Objectives

5.1 The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

5.2 The Company aims to build and maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
considered relevant to promoting the Company’s business
growth and maintaining its competitiveness in a long term
perspective.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Company’s
Corporate Governance Report, a summary of this policy and
where applicable, the measurable objectives that the Board has
adopted for implementation of this policy and the progress made
towards achieving these objectives.
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7. Review of this policy
The Nomination Committee will review this policy, as appropriate,
and discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our Company had regularly
reviewed the progress on achieving those objectives set out in the
board diversity policy above.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
as stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and Rule 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of our Group on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each
financial period which gives a true and fair view of our Group’s
financial affairs for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of our Group is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’'s Report”.

Risk management and internal control

The maintenance of a sound and effective internal control system and
risk management in our Group is important to safeguard our
Shareholders’ investment and our Company’s assets.

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to oversee our Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and to review their effectiveness at least annually. These systems are
designated to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve our business objectives, and could only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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During the year, our Group has identified and evaluated the relevant
risks of our Group through a series of interviews. During the risk
identification and evaluation processes, relevant risks were identified,
evaluated and categorised into four sections, namely financial,
compliance, strategic and operational, and our Group maintained a
risk register to keep track of all identified risks which provided to our
Board, the Audit Committee and our management a profile of those
major and significant risks and a record of management’s action taken
to mitigate these risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based
on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact to our Group. This
risk register is updated by our management as the risk owners with
addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at
least annually, after the annual risk evaluation and review have been
performed.

During the year, the Board had appointed RSM to review and assess
our Group'’s effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
and compliance controls, with a view to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of our accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. RSM had prepared the risk assessment report and internal
control report to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review,
which covered all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance and strategical controls and risk management function
and control of our Group. Moreover, improvements in internal control
system as recommended by RSM to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of our Group were also adopted by the
Board. Based on the review findings and recommendation of RSM as
well as the comments and suggestion of our Audit Committee, our
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

Function of internal audit

Currently our Group has no internal audit function. The Board has
discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is
of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of our Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to review, at least annually, our
risk management and internal control systems. Although our Group
did not establish internal audit function during the year, the Board will
continue to review a least annually the need for the function of internal
audit.
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Inside information

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. Our Company has
adopted the inside information policy which aims to set out guidelines
to the Group’s directors, officers and all relevant employees to ensure
inside information (as defined below) of the Company is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations.

The term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group,
because of his office or employment, who is likely to be in possession
of the unpublished inside information (as defined below).

Under the new Part XIVA of the SFO, Chapter 571, inside information
is the specific information about the company, its shareholder or
officer or its listed securities or derivatives, which is not generally
known to the persons who are accustomed, or would be likely, to deal
in the company’s listed securities but would, if generally known to
them, be likely to materially affect the price of the company’s listed
securities.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s inside information policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 March 2017, our Company Secretary
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with our Shareholders and other
stakeholders and encouraging them to communicate actively with our
Company.

This policy sets out the principles of our Company in relation to
Shareholders’ communications, with the objective of ensuring that the
communications with our Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including potential investors) with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about our Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile), in
order to enable our Shareholders and other stakeholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner mainly through our Company’s
corporate communications (such as interim reports and annual
reports, announcements and circulars, and notices of meetings),
annual general meetings and other general meetings, as well as
disclosure on the websites of our Company and of the Stock
Exchange, respectively.
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Announcements, interim reports, annual reports and circulars and
associated explanatory documents etc. are dispatched to our
Shareholders and are also published on the websites of our Company
and of the Stock Exchange under a dedicated “Investor Relations”
section under the sub-section headed “Information Disclosure”
thereon as soon as practicable in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single language, and will
be updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner.

Our Company’s website provides our Shareholders and other
stakeholders with the corporate information, such as our principal
business activities and products, the development of corporate
governance and the corporate social responsibilities of our Group,
etc.

Our Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and effective communication with our Shareholders
and analysts by maximising the use of our Company’s website as a
channel to disclose our Company’s updated information and corporate
communications to our Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on
a timely basis. Our Company also encourages our Shareholders to
attend shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of our Group’s
businesses and convey any concerns they may have to the Directors
and senior management.

Shareholders’ rights

1.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of our Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
our Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
our Company, shall at all times have the right to require an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the
Board.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of our Company at our principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the purpose of requiring an EGM of
our Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Such EGM will be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, an EGM will be convenced by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements
under the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing
Rules to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

Depending on the nature of the proposals, any EGM of our
Company at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by notice of not less than twenty-one
clear days and not less than ten clear business days. All other
EGM of our Company may be called by notice of not less than
fourteen clear days and not less than ten clear business days
(whereas the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is
served or deemed to be served and of the day for which it is
given), together with the accompanying circular which also sets
out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Company’s Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries such as their
shareholdings, share transfer and registration, change of name
or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants,
registration and payment of dividend, etc. to our Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited:

Address Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
Email . is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com
Tel : (852) 2980 1333
Fax :  (852) 28108185
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Shareholders and other stakeholders may also raise enquiries in
respect of our Company’s matters in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary whose contact details are as follow:

Address : Unit 3410, 34th Floor

Email

Tel

Fax

Tower I, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong

ir@hkfinance.com.hk
(852) 2525 3535

(852) 2525 3534

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

Pursuant to Articles 83(2) and 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and the “Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director of the
Company”, which is available at our Company’s website, a
Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring Director for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting should lodge:

(a) notice in writing signed by him/her concerned of his/
her intention to propose a candidate for election as a
Director which must include the personal particulars
of this nominated candidate as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(b) notice in writing signed by this nominated candidate
to be proposed indicating his/her willingness to be
elected and his/her consent to publish his/her
information on our Company’s announcement.

The above-mentioned notices should be lodged and
addressed to the Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive
Officer of our Company at our principal place of business
in Hong Kong, and the period for lodgment of these notices
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting and end no later than ten business
days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Alls A/ N/
PEEQME
(i) Procedures for putting other forward proposals at general (i) RIRRASIEHAMEZE T -

meetings:
To put forward proposals other than the above at a general BAERRAS FIRE FltAINZ
meeting, Shareholders should submit a written notice of & BRRBRIXZEEZZEMA
those proposals with their detailed contact information to o BERFMEBAER  ARAR
our Company Secretary at the principal place of business BERRBZ T EEEME T A B
of our Company in Hong Kong. The notice period to be EZ -MEBRRREEPRERRERZE
given to all Shareholders for consideration of the proposal BEZIREMAEERERELES
raised by the Shareholders concerned at general meetings BAHMREEZRZEEM AR
varies according to the nature of the proposal. [ o

Constitutional Documents BEXH

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no change in the # ZE2017F3A31 B ILFE » KRR 2 &E

amended Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company. ETAR 48 S 72 K40 N2 4R BT fm st ) o

Our Company’s latest versions of Memorandum of Association and 7R/ A14B 4% Z 2 A 40 & MBI 7 FZFThRA D B

Articles of Association are available on the websites of our Company  ARA & &

and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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INTRODUCTION

Our Group is the first Hong Kong listed company specialising in
property mortgage with solid financial background and high
transparency. A major reason for our success is the reputation we
have established over the years. We are always the first choice of
mortgage among the property owners. We are the best mortgage
platform for property owners.

We continue to provide “professional, reliable, and flexible” mortgage
services. Our experienced mortgage managers provide customised,
property-pledged mortgage solutions based on customers’ specific
needs. Creating a harmonious community is one of the key targets in
the Group’s vision of building and maintaining a sustainable business.
We continued our commitment to making donations to and sponsoring
various reputable charity partners. Our strong corporate social
responsibility and outstanding services have won wide recognition in
the market, furnishing us with a solid reputation as the most reliable
lender in Hong Kong.

Our Group is committed to responsible operation and value creation
for stakeholders and community by integrating environmental and
social factors into our management considerations. Sustainability
strategy is based on the compliance with the legal requirements in the
area we operate and opinions from stakeholders. It is crucial for our
Group’s growth in order to achieve business excellence and to build
capabilities for long-term competitiveness. We have established
various policies to manage and monitor the risks related to the
environment, employment, operating practices and community. Details
of the management approaches to sustainable development of
different areas are illustrated in this environmental, social and
governance report.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Our Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in our
Group’s business activities. The following table provides an overview
of our Group’s key stakeholders and various platforms and methods of
communication used by our Group to reach out, listen and respond to

key stakeholders.

FhESH
AEBRBUFHEHAEEBXERESH 2B

B BAMTERBESERZEEN. - TX
MAAREE 2 TERHNEARNEEBRE

B REMOEIRENEZTRRE

TR e

BEFAR

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel
B E M2 EHERE
Government —  To comply with the laws —  On-site inspections and checks
—  Proper tax payment —  Research and discussion through
—  Promote regional economic work conferences, work reports
development and employment preparation and submission for
—  To make proper and timely disclosures approval
— Annual reports
—  Website of our Company
B — HEPER — EBimBRkgd
—  RER — FRIFgH REIEHRSRER
— HEPRELEERNLE HEE R B 55 N At
— KREBELHEERE — FH
—  RRARIEL
Shareholders and —  Lowrisk — Annual general meeting and other

BRI MERE
REEA R B R F A8

Investors — Return on the investment shareholder meetings
— Information disclosure and — Annual reports, interim reports and
transparency announcements
—  Protection of interests and fair —  Newsletter
treatment of shareholders —  Meeting with investors and analysts
—  Websites of our Company and of the
Stock Exchange, respectively
BRRREREE —  EERER — BRERBFRGRHEMBRRERG
— KREMER —  Fif - hEHRERIE

FER
B EE KA MANE®E
AN E) A8 uh R B R A v
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel
FE EERE
Employees Safeguard the rights and interests of Conference
employees Training, seminars, briefing sessions
Working environment Cultural and sport activities
Career development opportunities Newsletters
Self-actualisation Intranet and emails
Health and safety
&8 RIS (B B4R R o B
TIERE 2l - g RE TS
EXTRKS MEREEES
BHRER e
REEZ R B 48 &2 B8 3B
Customers Legal and high-quality products Website of our Company, brochures
Stable relationship and annual reports
Information transparency Email and customer service hotline
Integrity Feedback forms
Business ethics Regular meeting
EF BENEBEER AT - BEMRFR
TR R BEREFIRIGELR
BHRER BRREXR
AEEM%_ )T_%q = u?ﬁz
FXER
Bank To repay loans on schedule, monitor Work conferences
operating conditions and risks and On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
operate with honesty and credibility various business communication
R1T RIFERENR  BEREERRNLER - TiEE=®
&uﬂﬁﬁﬁg B  EREMREEEFEBM

Peer/Industry

Experience sharing

Industry conference

associations Corporations Site visit
Fair competition Website of our Company
B 1TEHE KBH= SES T
aiE BihinE
NFFF PN/NSIEE DA
Financial Institution Compliance with the law and Consulting

regulations
Disclosure information

Information disclosure
Annual Reports, interim reports and
announcements

P HAE

BTIRERIER
BEER
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Stakeholder Expectation

Bt E

Engagement channel
EERE

communities —  Social responsibilities

Media —  Transparent information —  Website of our Company
—  Communication with media — Interviews
— Media conference
—  Media gathering
5 — BHEH —  ARRIA8L
—  HEEER — A
— RERAFE
—  BERK
Public and —  Community involvement —  Volunteering

—  Charity and social investment
— Annual reports, interim reports and

announcements
ARALTRHEE — #HEz2® — EIR®K
— HEBEEE — HEERUHERE

— FH hHmELRAE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Emissions

Our Group is committed to continuously improving the environmental
sustainability of our business. In striving to do the right thing as a
company, we recognise that we have an obligation to reduce the
impact on our operations and be accountable for the resources and
materials we use each day.

Our Group is mainly involved in office operation only. Our Group’s
“Corporate Environmental Policy” encompasses our general approach
towards controlling environmental impacts of office activities. Our most
significant environmental impacts are greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions from energy use in our facilities. Our businesses are mostly
carried out locally in offices in Hong Kong. In line with our policy to
minimise emissions, we have implemented energy saving practices
which are mentioned in the session of “Use of Resources” in order to
reduce the GHG emission. We compile with Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Sewage Services Ordinance and Waste Disposal
Ordinance. During the reporting period, there were no cases of non-
compliance with the laws and regulations in respect of emissions.
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Use of Resources

Our Group places a high priority on the efficient use of resources. As
stipulated in our Group’s “Corporate Environmental Policy”, the Group
strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources, including
minimise waste streams and emissions and implement effective
recycling programs. Practical measures are implemented as follows:

Paper Saving

In the office, we encourage our employees to use both sides of the
paper and use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise the uses
of paper, if possible. Besides, electronic media is recommended for
circulation/communication, to further minimise the uses of paper.

Water Conservation
We encourage our employees to report all leaking faucets or pipes to
the relevant department and turn off all taps when not in use.

Electricity Conservation
The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The room temperature should be set in a comfortable range.
Also, unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off
when they are not in use.

Green Pantry

We encourage our employees to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and environmentally friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Materials Re-use and Stationary Conservation

Waste papers are used as fillers for packing and/or reduce using
fillers, if possible. Employees should handle and store materials
carefully to reduce breakage and wastage. Boxes/fillers/other
materials are reused for packaging/storage/delivery. Environmentally
friendly stationery is suggested to use. Cord binder, envelopes and
other materials or stationery should be reused until worn out.

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to our Group’s “Corporate Environmental Policy”, we (i)
raise staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through various
approaches and enlist their support in improving our performance; (ii)
promote environmental awareness amongst our customers, business
partners and shareholders; (iii) support community activities in relation
to environmental protection and sustainability; and (iv) evaluate
regularly and monitor past and present business activities impacting
upon environmental matters. With the integration of policies mentioned
in the sessions “Emission” and “Use of Resource”, we are able to
minimise the impacts to the environment and natural resources.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

Being in the financial services industry, our people are our most
important asset that drives the long-term development and
sustainability of our Group. We have established and implemented a
set of human resources management policies and procedures in
place with the aim to provide an ideal working environment to our staff
in order to comply with local employment laws and regulations, such
as Employment Ordinance. Our staff handbook sets out our Group’s
standards for compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Our Group provides competitive and attractive remuneration package
to reward and retain our employees. The package includes basic
salary, allowance, Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) and required
social security benefits and variable incentive-based remuneration
such as discretionary bonus.

Our people are more than just employees — they are friends and
family of our Group. To increase the employees’ sense of belonging,
we establish a supportive and relaxing working environment and offer
activities to employees, including but not limited to annual dinner.

Our Group provides paid or partially paid leave in addition to that
specified in the Employment Ordinance or provides support services
or activities to staff to take care of urgent personal or family matters
when required.

Our Group strives to provide employees and/or their family members
family care benefits and support that have a positive impact on their
family life.

In 2015/2016, our principal subsidiary, HK Finance, was commended
as Family-Friendly Employer. The Award Scheme is co-organised by
the Home Affairs Bureau and the Family Council, which recognised
the efforts made to put in place family-friendly practices and measures
and foster pro-family culture and environment.

During the reporting period, no non-compliance regarding
employment brought against us or our employees were noted.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

46

HELHE

BRERETIESR

3

RERBHE - BIARMEDAEERHH
RRARBEER:EEEE - RETNLER
SEBIRER RIS - RFERI Y KIS

—EANBREEBRRNMEF EE/BETIR
IR TR - LI E TFMHIIAEKE
HONEGER  MERET - IR KERME -
FEHS - ynk RIEREFFEE - ARHEAM
ERNSEES

AEEREABZF N RES| N ZFHMAE A
B & B HE’”EE\ cHEBREEARTS - R - B’
HEAEE CRES) - WEHRRERN LF

BREME (WEBIEAL)

ﬁﬁ%%l?1%ﬁ\'ﬁ%$% BZERR

RA - RiREREERBER  HAIRI—EAX
Fr R ERRH TIERR - ﬁEEhMﬁE%%
HE -

FREMRIRGIFARIAESN - REBIIRE 2

BTREAFHAIDHHMRE - SEREIER
BEY  WEEESEARRES -

AEERNMEES R IEREKSRHFKE
EREMN LR BREZRELFELER

S
rE°

M 2015/2016 5 - ZMWEEM BRI EERE
BEZTARERSRE - ZRZEFEHRK
EHRRREZSHE RN RIBEHEIRE
REBOIRERE - AR EERBERENERIR
BHEMEZEN -

RmERA - HASRMNEELETERE
BEESIEZTERIEN



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R g REAWmE

Health and Safety

In the daily operation of our Group, there are no significant hazards as
compared to industries like manufacturing and mining etc.. We aim to
provide a safe and healthy working environment to our employees,
and encourage them to achieve a balance between work and a
healthy life as stipulated in our “Occupational Safety and Health
Policy”. We support and nurture a culture that promotes employees
wellness and raises health and safety awareness. We provide extra
protection measures over and above those specified in the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and/or Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance by providing employees’ well-
being, safety and welfare that includes out-patient fees. Besides, we
also provide information and activities/services regarding stress
management and mental wellness counselling that enable staff to deal
with interpersonal health and personal and family matters that might
affect their job performance.

During the reporting period, there were no cases of non-compliance
with the laws and regulations in respect of the provision of a safe
working environment and the protection of employees from
occupational hazards.

Development and Training

Our Group is committed to supporting staff development based on our
“Staff Training and Development Policy”. We provide diversified on-
the-job training to employees. We ensure that our employees are
supported and are able to meet the changing demands of our Group
and our service users so that the organisation achieves its strategic
objectives. We also strive to facilitate employees development through
assisting them to broaden, deepen and thereby further enhance their
existing skills. We provide a working environment where continuous
learning and development take place that helps the employees to gain
more enjoyment from their roles, increase motivation and enhance
employee retention. We will enhance the training system in order to
improve the personal development of our employees.
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Labour Standards

According to our Group’s staff handbook, we strive to provide fair and
equal opportunities and a respectful and pleasant working
environment to all employees. All individuals of our Group are
recruited, hired, assigned, trained, promoted, compensated and
retained on the basis of their qualifications, experience and/or the
terms and conditions, and treated equally in these respects without
regard to race, colour, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age,
marital status, national origin, disability or family status. We require
that the office work environment is free from all forms of discrimination
and harassment. There is no significant risk related to recruitment of
child labour as our Group’s business requires employees equipped
with specialised skills and adequate educational background. We are
in strict compliance with the Employment Ordinance and Employment
of Children Regulations. During the reporting period, no non-
compliance regarding labour standard brought against us or our
employees were noted.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Our Group’s business nature is service-orientated. Therefore, we have
relatively fewer suppliers and a less complicated supply chain. Our
main suppliers are only involved in third-party services providers such
as information technology service, property management service,
advertising service, legal and consulting service, office equipment,
printing and stationery suppliers. We have established an
“Environmental Purchasing Policy” to support the purchase of recycled
and environmentally preferred products in order to minimise
environmental impacts relating to our work. To provide a fair overview
of supplier selection, we opt to select more than one supplier for
comparison purpose during the primary engagement process.
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Product Responsibility

Providing efficient and high-quality service to customers are the
utmost concern of our Group. We are in strict compliance with related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Money Lenders
Ordinance, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPO”), Trade
Description Ordinance and Copyright Ordinance. Our aim is for our
customers to have confidence in our products and services, and
sufficient information to make informed choices.

As stipulated in our Group’s “Quality Management Policy”, we are
committed to providing services with high standards by aligning the
Company through priority setting and action plan building, reinforcing
network capabilities through training and supporting our employees
and monitoring our progress, and identifying and closing gaps
through indicators. We strive to improve customer experience by
providing value-added features on our website, including but not
limited to mortgage calculator, online property valuation and online
loan application. With the increasing popularity of the use of mobile
application and social media, we have established various
communication channels with customers, such as WhatsApp, WeChat
and Facebook. We also update news relating to fraud cases
commenced by illegal financial intermediates on our website to raise
the awareness of our customers. In order to understand customers’
need and improve our customer service, we welcome feedbacks from
customers through online questionnaire.

Our Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is the
key principle for operation. In our daily operations, we obtain various
types of personal data of our customers being protected by the PDPO.
As such, we have set up internal control procedures to ensure our
compliance with PDPO which include (i) our employees are required
not to retain or disclose any confidential information about our
business activities and other sensitive confidential data to any third
parties; (i) customers are acknowledged of their rights under PDPO
and the purpose of collection of their personal data upon completing
and signing the loan application forms; and (iii) confidential personal
data is not obtained through phone conversations and customer files
are kept in a locked cabinet.
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Anti-corporation

In our Group’s staff handbook, one of the most important rules is that
we require all employees to avoid any relationship, influence, interest
or activity that could compromise the best interest of our Group. As
part of their responsibility, all employees should avoid any position
whereby their judgment, decision or influence on behalf of our Group
may give rise to their personal interests, finance and/or other means of
interest. They should ensure that dealings with customers, suppliers,
contractors, job applicants, colleagues or any other third party are met
with good judgment, careful observance of all applicable laws and
regulations, and the highest standard of integrity at all times. Our
Group’s staff handbook states clearly that employees shall not accept
gifts, cash or other benefits that are beyond common business
hospitality, or the head of the department or the chief executive shall
be consulted. In cases of suspected corruption or other criminal
offences, a report will be made to the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) or the appropriate authorities.

Due diligence on customers

Before accepting customers’ loan application (including those
customers who are referred by loan brokers or referral agents), we
carry out Know-Your-Client procedures by verifying the customers’
identity using reliable and independent source documents such as
Hong Kong Identity Card and proof of residential address for
individual customers, and Certificate of Incorporation and/or Business
Registration Certificate for corporate customers. We perform land
registry checking to verify the ownership of the properties and
ascertain whether the properties are under any charge. We do not
allow anonymous customer account to be set up, and all loan
repayments from customers are made by cheques with their own bank
accounts and payable to us.

Our Group uses documents, data and information obtained from
reliable and independent sources, such as those from governments,
public authorities or other regulatory bodies, to identify and verify the
identity of our customers. If the customer is a body corporate, we will
enquire into the ownership structures of the body corporate. If
someone is acting on the authority of the customer, we will verify the
identity of the authorised person acting for that customer and examine
whether the authorised person does have the authority to act for that
customer.

As a matter of our established practice, such due diligence procedure
should be completed before we enter into any business relationship
with our customers.
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Reporting suspicious transactions

According to our internal guidelines when our staff knows or suspects
the property represents the proceeds of crime or terrorist property, a
disclosure must be made to our top management as soon as
reasonably possible. Afterwards, our Group will report to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit (JFIU), a unit jointly run by the Hong Kong
Police Force and the Hong Kong Customs & Excise Department, using
the standard form or the e-channel “STREAMS” therein, to report the
suspicious transactions as soon as possible. In identifying suspicious
customers or transactions, we focus on verifying the identities of our
customers by inspecting his/her personal identification documents (for
individual customers) and incorporation documents (for corporate
customers) and their ownership and title to the property collaterals
provided by them. When we review the findings of the legal due
diligence, we will endeavour to see if the findings show any information
that may make the customers appear suspicious to us. We also have
a lot of emphasis on the money flow and do not allow deposit or
payment of loans from us to another person (whether individual or
corporate) other than the customers.

Our Group has been in strict compliance with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, there was no
any legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against us or our
employees.

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, our Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate. We
have adopted “Community Involvement Policy”, which aims to
encourage and support community development initiatives to enhance
social benefits such as environment, health and education. We are
committed to contributing to the community as it is the key element of
sustainable development. Since 2012, HK Finance has been awarded
as Caring Company by Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
Contributions to the community are illustrated as follows:

Investment to the society

— Encourage our employees to participate in different volunteer
activities by providing resources and promoting and recognising
employees’ volunteering efforts

—  Make donation to Yan Chai Hospital Social Services Department
and encourage employees/customers/business partners/
suppliers, vendors or distributors to donate in order to increase
the donation amount
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Caring to the employees
—  Offer benefits above those specified in the Employment
Ordinance in employment contracts

— Establish communication system in place (i.e. internal
communication, consultation activities, complaint system, etc.)
that enables employees to understand company policies and
express their opinions and grievances

—  Meet with frontline staff, listen to and discuss issues that concern

them, especially those that affect their career and benefit

Caring for the Environment

—  Plan or establish mechanisms or activities in the daily operation
that have successfully promoted environmental protection

Our Group continues to contribute to the sustainable development of

the community by building a healthy and dynamic community and has

made donations to various charities during the reporting period as

follows:

—  The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon

— Hong Kong Association of the Deaf

— Ten Percent Donation Scheme Foundation

—  The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

— Yan Chai Hospital

—  Love Foundation

52 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FlEES
ERREEMOTIRMEELEBR G HE
Z @R

— BIBBRHE(MAREE  FREH -
BREHHIE) RESERARBR MR E

E\ﬁ&T/ﬁ

— HpREIgH KREMIREFET
ZHEE FRIRTEREEXENENEF
H

FLIRE
— RBEFXEHTREREL AT HEER
RZEHHIAE

AEBTENEBERRERIFTMERALE -
femAtRMAHERRELER - KRES
IR REBE M TS EREE#EELS
e

— BT OREHS
— {CEER

EEE

|
81



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEhEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koung Nam (PR*R8), aged 61, is our executive Director
who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan also acting as
directors of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is the brother of
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and one of the founders of our Group. Mr.
Chan has over twenty years of experience in money lending business
and is responsible for the strategic planning and overall development
of our Group.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in
the section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”
respectively.

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (B 3¢ &), aged 52, is our executive
Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also
acting as directors of various subsidiaries of our Company and is the
Chairman of the Board. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and
one of the founders of our Group. He has over twenty years of
experience in money lending business and is responsible for
overseeing our Group’s business operation and development as well
as monitoring our Group’s corporate strategy and administration. Mr.
Chan also supervises the formulation of our Group’s marketing
strategy and the execution of the relevant marketing programs.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in
the section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”
respectively.

Mr. Tse Pui To (#1%38), aged 51, is our executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr.
Tse joined our Group in 2002 and is responsible for managing our
Group’s business operation with focus on our mortgage loan sales,
aftersales activities and other administrative functions. Prior to joining
our Group, he worked as and held senior positions in various financial
institutions. Mr. Tse possesses extensive experience in corporate
finance activities and business promotions.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEhEREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (BRJK58), aged 52, is our independent
non-executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013.
Currently Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive directors of each
of Nature Home Holding Company Limited (stock code: 2083) and
Quali-Smart Holdings Limited (stock code: 1348), the shares of these
two companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Phoenitron
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8066), the shares of which are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan acted as independent non-executive directors of each of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 1380), from 16
July 2015 to 23 December 2015, and National Agricultural Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1236), from 11 September 2015 to 31 March
2016. The shares of these two companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan possesses over twenty-five years of experience in the
profession of accounting, taxation, finance and trust. He obtained a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney. Mr.
Chan is the members of both HKICPA and the Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (535 ), aged 45, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Currently
Mr. Chu is an independent non-executive directors of Ten Pao Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1979), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a managing director
of Halcyon Capital Limited which specialises in initial public offerings
and corporate advisory in mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Chu possesses over twenty years of experience in corporate
finance and auditing. He used to work for an international accounting
firm and other corporate finance arms of listed financial institutions in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
with a bachelor of arts degree and from The University of Hull in the
United Kingdom with a master of business administration (investment
and finance) degree. He also obtained a diploma in accounting from
the School of Business and Economics of the Wilfrid Laurier University
in Canada. Mr. Chu is a member of HKICPA.

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (&E & ), aged 59, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr.
Cheung is also a practicing solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong
since 1993. Currently he is a partner of S.H. Chan & Co., a solicitors’
firm in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEhEREEE

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong and a bachelor of laws degree from the University of
London. He was thereafter awarded the postgraduate certificate in
laws by the University of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hui Chun Ho Eric (FFf&% ), aged 42, is the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of our Group. Mr. Hui joined our Group in
2012 and is responsible for the overall financial accounting and
reporting, corporate finance and company secretarial matters of our
Group.

Mr. Hui possesses about twenty years of experience in auditing,
financial accounting and reporting, company secretarial matters and
corporate finance matters. Prior to joining our Group, he worked for an
international accounting firm and held several senior positions in other
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Hui is the fellow members of both The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and HKICPA, and an associate of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
master of business administration with distinction from The University
of Manchester, United Kingdom.

Mr. Ngai Hon Leung (B R ), aged 47, is the Associate Director —
Head of Personal Loan of our Group. Mr. Ngai joined our Group in
2016 and is responsible for administering the personal loan and credit
assessment of our Group’s personal loan business.

Mr. Ngai possesses over twenty years of experience in personal loan
finance and administration matters. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked for and held senior positions in other well-known personal
finance companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ngai obtained a bachelor of science degree in physics from The
University of Tokyo.

Mr. Chan Siu Fai (Bf 2 ¥ ), aged 54, is the Senior Mortgage Sales
Manager of our Group. Mr. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit
assessment of our Group’s lending business.

Mr. Choi Tak On Jobby (¥f2 %), aged 48 is the Senior Mortgage
Sales Manager of our Group. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2005 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit
assessment of our Group’s lending business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

Our Directors are pleased to present the report of the directors
together with the audited financial statements of our Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of our subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out
in the “Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of our Company will be held on Tuesday,
5 September 2017 (the “AGM”). The notice of AGM, which constitutes
part of the circular to the Shareholders, will be published on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, and dispatched
to our Shareholders together with our Company’s 2017 annual report
in due course.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK1.6 cents per Share for the six months ended
30 September 2016 had been paid to our Shareholders on 19 January
2017. The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.1
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2017, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGM. The proposed final dividend will
be paid on Wednesday, 11 October 2017.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods, and no transfers of shares of the Company will be
effected during such periods:

(i)  from Thursday, 31 August 2017 to Tuesday, 5 September 2017,
both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order
to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of
ordinary shares of the Company, duly accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the “Branch Registrar”), at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 August
2017; and
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(i)  on Wednesday, 13 September 2017, for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of ordinary shares of the Company, duly
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Branch Registrar at the address set out above for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 September
2017.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by our Group during the year
amounted to HK$308,000 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of our business review as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the
preceding section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
Details of our principal properties held for investment purposes are set
out in the section headed “Schedule of Investment Properties”.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR
Details of the share issued in the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of our Company at 31 March 2017, calculated
under the legislation applicable in Company’s place of incorporation,
amounted to HK$363,831,000 (2016: HK$367,785,000) before the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is set out
in Note 26 to the financial statements and in this section headed
“Share Option Scheme”. No share options were granted during the
year. For the share options outstanding, no shares were issued during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group
for the last five financial years is set out section headed “Five-year
Financial Summary”.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
those participants who made contributions to our Group with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any Director (whether
executive or non-executive or independent non-executive), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or any entity in
which our Company or any subsidiary holds any interest whom the
Board determines on the basis of contribution or potential contribution
to the development and growth of our Group.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
grant of an option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a business date;
(b) the average closing price of the shares of our Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of our Company.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.

The total number of shares of our Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (exclusive of options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of our Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment by the
Shareholders.
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Our Company may seek approval of our Shareholders in general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit set out hereinabove such that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval to refresh such limit. Share options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating such limit as refreshed.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of
shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under this Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme of our Company if it would result in the above-
mentioned 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of our Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. No further options may be granted more than 10 years after 4
September 2013.

Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years from 4 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, on 1 April 2015, our Company
has granted 21,350,000 share options to eligible participants.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, no option was granted or EZ2017E3 A31 B ILFE - &R IS ER
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 &R BRI S% L EERE - 120173 A
March 2017, 19,150,000 share options were still outstanding, which 31 H + 19,150,000 15 B BE 4 ) R 771+ 4B &
represents approximately 4.6% of the issued ordinary shares of our  JAZANA R B 3E(TE @A) 4.6% ©

Company.

Details of the share options outstanding under the Share Option 2017438318 Z B EEH 218 T i K17

Scheme as at 31 March 2017, are as follows: MBI
Number of options ('000)
BREHE (T4)
Exercise
As at Exercised Lapsed As at price
1 April during during 31 March per share Exercisable Exercisable
Participant 25% 2016 the year the year 2017 HK$ from until
R2016 % R2017E  BRTHE BUATEH EZNUTHE
451R ERfTlE ERXA 3R31A (Bm) AR AT
Executive Directors HTES
Chan Koung Nam Bt 1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
01554418 202053A31H
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
016F4818  2020F3A31H
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020

01754718 2020634318

Chan Kwong Yin William (R} & 1,000 - - 1,000 089 1 April2015 31 March 2020
01554818 202053A31H

1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
201654A18 202043 A31H

1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020

01754718 202063 A31H

Tse Pui To HigE 867 - - 867 089 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
2015F4F18 2020534316

867 - - 867 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020

201654718 2020534318

866 - - 866 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020

2017F4F18 2020534316

Continuous contract BEELY 3,668 - (150) 3518 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
employees =] 201554A18 202043 A31H
3,668 - (150) 3518 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
20164818 202053 A31H
3,664 - (150) 3514 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020
17F4F18 2020438318
Total @y 19,600 - (450) 19,150
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Koung Nam

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chu
Yat Pang Terry (Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong (Independent Non-executive Director) will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Our Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent during the
year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this Directors’
Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not
less than three months prior written notice or otherwise in accordance
with the service agreement. Each of the executive Directors will
receive a monthly salary subject to annual review by the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Board. Each of the executive
Directors is also entitled to a discretionary bonus as may be
determined by the Board and the remuneration committee of the
Board after each completed year of service provided that the
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses payable in each financial
year to all executive Directors shall not exceed five per cent of the
audited consolidated net profit attributable to owners of our Company
but before extraordinary or exceptional items of the relevant financial
year. Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a guaranteed
bonus which is equivalent to one-month salary.

Our Group has provided a quarter located in Hong Kong to an
executive Director, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William as part of the
remuneration of his directorship in our Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with our Company for an initial term of two years
commencing from the Listing Date and may be terminated by not less
than three months (save for the notice period which is one month for
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond) prior written notice or otherwise in
accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The annual fees
payable by our Company to the independent non-executive Directors
is an aggregate amount according to the letters of appointment.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company has a service
contract with period unexpired with our Company which is not
determinable by our Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option Scheme above, at no time
during the year was our Company, nor any of our subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or our parent company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of our Company or any other body corporate;
and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO OUR COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
our Group’s business to which our Company, any of our subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or our parent company was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete
with the business of our Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company'’s Articles of Association provides that every Director of
our Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of our Company from and
against any liability incurred by them or any one of them as holder of
any such office or appointment to a third party.

A permitted indemnity provision is in force as at the date of this report
and was in force throughout the year for the benefit of all the Directors
pursuant to the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance arranged by
our Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out in the preceding section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
Directors, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since the publication of 2016 annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and/or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of our Company in the shares and
underlying shares of our Company and our associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (i) recorded in the
register kept by our Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (ii)
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

EERBREITHAERKR G R IEEKR
PREMEMEEEIE 2 EZR =
RE

MR2017F3A31H ' ARBIZEERESTT
BAEBRARRIREEBEZE(EERESFR
BB IEBIZE XV EF) 2 Bt RAARERR (¥ B () 1R
BES N HEIENE 2GR ERARNTERFLZ
TrfAraRirz sk SRR k(i) BRI
BE KRB IEFIEXVEBE 7 K 8D BRI MIZ A
FAZHRFEMNE AR MBI 2 #EF
N/ SARBMT ¢

RARXR 2R (FR)

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held (’000)

RO RAERKRDEE (TR)

Total
Interestina (% of the issued
Shares/Equity Beneficial controlled share capital
Name of Directors derivatives owner corporation  of the Company)
HEt
37, REEZH (HEQXBRES BT
EEnE RESTETR BRBEAA EEER RAZ2BDL)
Chan Koung Nam (i) Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000

RR Y FE L imA (Note FfizE (1))
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000

B (Note Ffi5E (2))

303,000
(73.01%)
Chan Kwong Yin William (i) Ordinary shares 4,184 300,000 304,184

R E LA (Note FfizE (1))
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000

B (Note Fff5E (2))
307,184
(74.02%)
Tse Pui To Share options 2,600 - 2,600
AIEE BB R (Note HIFE (2)) (0.63%)
Notes: BEE

(1) These shares of our Company are held by Tin Ching Holdings. Each of
Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William owns 50% of the
issued share capital of Tin Ching Holdings. By virtue of the provisions of
Part XV of the SFO, both Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin
William are deemed to be interested in all the shares of our Company in
which Tin Ching Holdings is interested or deemed to be interested.

(2)  These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the share options
granted to each of them under the Share Option Scheme, details of
which are disclosed in the preceding section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this section.
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Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors or the chief executive
of our Company had registered any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of our Company or any of our associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), or
as otherwise notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than a director or chief executive of our Company),
who had interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of our Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

(R EXFRIREEIN  MEARREFERRSTT
KA B RN B S A AL AR HEE B 2 B fn 3
Bl BRBEAREESFRPEHRISE
352 BB R AR (£622F ) AT ik
TAEEIXE - IIRBEFEETRIBHEAR
A BRI P FEERBUR R °

FERRRROKBBREG 2 #ED
R/SKRE

MR2017FE3A31H  BESAMUATALT QL
IEARNREEHAESTRAB)EEARARAZ
MR ek FERERR D 2 i I SA R - ZBIRIEE
FREAEEBEXVEE 2 K373 2 B3 T A
W HIRIEEFH R HIE 5P 5 336 1§47 E 5L
HRREFE 2 SLMA :

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held (’000)

RO RAERKRODEE (TR)
Total
Interestina (% of the issued
Name of substantial Shares/ Beneficial controlled share capital
shareholders Equity derivatives owner corporation of the Company)
et
87 REEZEH (HEQXRERT
TERRBE LB RESTETA BERBEAA EE R RAEZBEDL)
Tin Ching Holdings Ordinary shares 300,000 - 300,000
RemtERx LA (72.29%)
Chan Koung Nam (i) Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000
BRYtE gl
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
fERE
303,000
(73.01%)
Chan Kwong Yin William (i) Ordinary shares 4,184 300,000 304,184
BRAE EIBA
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
REMHE
307,184
(74.02%)
BEREESEERAR

65

2017 F 3R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest and/or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of our Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by our
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our top five customers (as
determined by interest income generated) accounted for
approximately 20.0% (2016: 19.0%) of our total revenue and our single
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.0% (2016: 6.0%) of
our total revenue.

All of our top five customers were third parties independent to our
Company and our connected person(s) or associate(s). To the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, none of our Group,
our Directors, members of our senior management, and their
respective associates and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the
issued Shares, had any interest in or financial or business relationship
with any of our Group’s top five customers during the year ended 31
March 2017.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of our Controlling Shareholders, namely Tin Ching Holdings, Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, has entered into
the Deed of Non-competition in favor of our Company, pursuant to
which each of our Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and
unconditionally, undertakes and covenants with each of our Company
and our subsidiaries that with effect from the Listing Date and for as
long as the Shares remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and he/it
and his/its associates, individually or collectively with any other
Controlling Shareholder(s) is, directly or indirectly, interested in 30%
or more of the Shares in issue, or is otherwise regarded as a
Controlling Shareholder (as that term is defined under the Listing
Rules from time to time) of our Company, each of our Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/its
associated (excluding any members of our Group) shall, among
others:

(a) directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in
any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business activity and any business activities
undertaken by our Group from time to time (the “Restricted
Business”) which any member of our Group may undertake in
the future in Hong Kong except for the holding of not more than
5% shareholding interests in any listed company in Hong Kong;

(b) take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an
interference with or a disruption to the Restricted Business
including, but not limited to, solicitation of the customers,
suppliers or staff of our Group; and

(c) exploit his/its knowledge or information obtained from our Group
to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business carried on by
our Group from time to time.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of our Controlling
Shareholders on compliance with each of their respective undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by our Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully
complied with and duly enforced during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transaction, which also constituted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, entered
into by our Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 is contained
in Note 33 to the financial statements.

The following summarised continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2017. The Directors confirm
that our Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Fully exempted continuing connected transaction

On 15 January 2017, HK Finance (as borrower), our Company (as
guarantor) and Tin Ching Industrial (as lender) entered into the loan
agreement, pursuant to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to provide
the loan facility of up to HK$150,000,000 to HK Finance for the
expansion of the existing property mortgage business of our Group at
an interest rate of 1.25% per annum over the HK$ prime rate quoted
by DBS (Hong Kong) Limited for a term subject to review by Tin Ching
Industrial at any time but in any event no later than one year after the
date of the loan agreement.

As Tin Ching Industrial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tin Ching
Holdings which is the substantial Shareholder of our Company and is
a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules), accordingly
the loan agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction for
providing financial assistance to our Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. However, as the loan facility is provided by Tin
Ching Industrial for our Group’s and Shareholders’ benefits, and on
normal or better commercial terms to our Company where no security
over our Group's assets is granted in respect of the loan facility, the
loan agreement as continuing connected transaction is fully exempt
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors of our Company. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of our Group and under arm’s length
negotiations; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to our Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (c) in accordance with the loan agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of our Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

The Directors confirm that our Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation
to the connected transactions to which our Company was a party
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to our Company and
within the knowledge of our Directors, our Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of its issued shares in the Stock Exchange
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 76 to 144, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Continued)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit relates to impairment

RENVER (@)

By

REBBEFMAG 2(BXSFTEBETRD
(TsPRID) - BB BERE - WO EEST
AIEITRMEIRE(E -

BFEETEE

REBL M EXAE - BREASTHSRMAE
ARG E M B REATRERZFH - HM
EERAGAVBHRR MU ERNE AR BER
BHEEHR MASRLEEETHREFERE
2o

BN E LRSS R B 2 R B AT

assessment of loans and interest receivables.

Key Audit Matter
HEETSEE

P RBERETER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
N ETNAUERERRETSE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
JEWE SR E B

Refer to Note 4.1(a) (critical accounting estimates and
judgments), Note 19 (loans receivable) and Note 21
(interest receivables) to the consolidated financial
statements.

R AP BRERMT41(a) (EESFHEFT R HE) - I
19 (R E R KMtsr 21 (BUFIE) -

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s net loans and interest
receivables amounted to HK$819.0 million and HK$17.9
million, respectively. Provision for individual and
collective impairment assessments of loans receivable
amounted to HK$3.2 million and HK$1.4 million,
respectively.
R201763A31H - EXREZERWERENSFES 5
#3819,000,000 % 7T & 17,900,000 7T © Bt FE U & 2 & 51
K BE B8 RU(E AT 1 L B 9 7l 3,200,000 7% 7T & 1,400,000
PETT

We assessed management’s assessment of provision for

impairment of loans and interest receivables by
performing the following procedures:

BAPTE BITT T IR Fr T4 B 1 B L U E S N BB E
R e 2 BT

° understood, evaluated and validated the controls
over impairment assessment of loans and interest
receivables, which relates to management’s
identification of events that triggered the provision
for impairment of loans and interest receivables and
estimation of the amount of provisions;

o TR FHMEREREEEEERSSI BAMBKER K
MEREFEHEEREARESRZEHEEYE
WE R N BORMBE T Af 2 #E I

o carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test
the accuracy of the aging of loans and interest
receivables as at the balance sheet date;

e REWERERFNENRGEE R ZRES S ERNITHE
BRI

o reviewed management’'s assessment on the
adequacy of provision for individual impairment
based on customer’s ability to repay the outstanding
loans and interest receivables and the value of
underlying collaterals;

e ZEHERERBEPEEREREBKERRFEZME
ﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬂﬁwéﬂﬁﬁmE‘Ji@dﬁﬁéﬁ%éﬁ}fﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁ
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

BRESEHEW@

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNATEEERENSER

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
(Continued)
JEW B R E R E A ()

Management assessed the provision for impairment of
loans and interest receivables based on an estimate of
the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions for
individual impairment are applied to loans and interest
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible;
whereas provisions for collective impairment are applied
to loans and interest receivables based on actual
historical impairment rates on loans and interest
receivables.

B B AR 5L S FE R IE 2 AT Wk B 12 2 AT A R L B R
RABBEEE - B B4 ERBENE BB TREERTTAE
EORWE - BBt E S R A B R E R BB - e
WERLNE 2 BERERENREBEEEERLRFNEZE
B ERMERIEL -

We focused on this area because the carrying value of
loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements and the management’s
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
require the use of significant judgments and estimates.
AT UL &S 2 [REA R B E R LA S 2 REE 4R
EUBHREAMEERES - MERRBNGEEKERRAE
BN ZA1EH B AR HE R k5t -
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o examined, on a sample basis, a number of individual
significant customers which were not identified by
management as potentially impaired and performed
audit procedures to assess the recoverability, based
on examination of the customer’s repayment records
and independent researches on public available
information on the values of underlying collaterals;
and

s KEBURFENEBCEENEEBAERREEZR
FRABERZBIMR  MEREERELEERANL
AREETTREZZRENEZERF » WHITEFIZT
NRHEFTERRE - &

° re-performed management’s calculation of collective
impairment assessment which grouped together all
the receivables with similar risk characteristics
based on the reference to the actual historical loss
rates.

e EHHITERESAZ2RERBABEXGEMER
BB FEIR L YR TR R AR G 25T E o

Based on the procedures described above, we found,
judgments and estimates applied in the impairment
assessment of loans and interest receivables were
supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Chow Shiu Hay Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EmRAK

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z 201743 A 31 B L F/E

Year ended 31 March
HE3A3IHIEFE

2017 2016
2017 4F 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FHET FH&T

Revenue Wz 6 103,658 111,273
Other income Hig A 6 2,032 2,127
Fair value gains on revaluation of BEREME 2 N ERE

investment properties 16 9,960 =
Administrative expenses ITHFAX 7 (88,820) (36,448)
Operating profit Fg g 76,830 76,952
Finance costs LR 9N 10 (22,167) (19,309)
Profit before income tax R AT S B AR R 54,663 57,643
Income tax expense Frs®if = 11 (8,364) (9,582)
Profit and total comprehensive AARBEEAEBEFERFR

income for the year attributable to 2HEIMAEEE

owners of the Company 46,299 48,061
Earnings per share for profit AATREBAELERZ

attributable to owners of BERERN

the Company

— Basic (HK cents) — EARCE) 12(a 11.2 11.6

— Diluted (HK cents) — E5E OBL) 12(b 11.2 11.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARe IR

As at 31 March 2017722017 %3 A 31 H
As at 31 March

M3 A31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 £F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BENERE 15 81,529 60,660
Investment properties WEYE 16 64,530 76,860
Available for sale investment AHEERE 625 625
Loans receivable e E TR 19 59,039 97,527
Other asset ﬁf‘@é? 20 1,100 =
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHE E 31 266 87
Total non-current assets B EELLE 207,089 235,759
Current assets REEE
Loans receivable FEWE X 19 760,003 576,529
Interest receivables FENF B 21 17,887 15,197
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE - e REAM
receivables JE U IR 22 5,195 987
Repossessed asset W el & B 23 = 5,306
Tax recoverable E k| 1,461 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIEEEEY 24 15,298 20,791
Total current assets RBEELE 799,844 618,810
Total assets EEHER 1,006,933 854,569
Equity =
Equity attributable to the owners of  Z 2 T A A FE(LEZ
the Company
Share capital A% A 25 4150 4,150
Reserves Ex= 27 492,430 458,819
Total equity TEMREE 496,580 462,969
EBAEEEEERAR

2017 F 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARe IR R

As at 31 March 2017 722017 %3 A 31 H
As at 31 March

M3 A31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FETT
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B5 R EMERN A 28 6,972 5,544
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEfT—RER R B A Rk IE 33(b) 69,700 88,951
Tax payable FEI IR - 2,423
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEK 29 315,752 179,251
Total current liabilities RBAGEHRRE 392,424 276,169
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Bonds Fiﬁ 30 113,797 111,451
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAas 31 4,132 3,980
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBERE 117,929 115,431
Total liabilities EEEm 510,353 391,600
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEHE 1,006,933 854,569
Net current assets RBEEFHE 407,420 342,641
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERATER 614,509 578,400
On behalf of the Board REEED
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BRAELE BRARSEE
Chairman Executive director
FE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z 201743 A 31 B L F/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREEE AR
Share Share Capital Share Retained
capital premium reserve  option reserve eamings Total
RA RiVEE BAGE  BRERE REEH &
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
itz TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Balance at 1 April 2015 W2015E4 1R 2 &8 4150 103,665 100,020 = 220,066 427,901
Total comprehensive income FE2ENALE
for the year - = = = 48,061 48,061
Transactions with owners REEAZRS
Employee share option scheme: [EERRENE
— Value of employee services —EERBER - - - 2,117 = 2,117
Divicends relating to 2015 BB01EZEE 13 - - = = (7,885) (7,885)
Dividends relating to 2016 BE016EZHRE 13 - - - - (7,885) (7,885)
Total transactions with owners, ~ HEEBAZRZEE
recognised directly in equity ERRERRR - - - 2117 (15,770) (12,993)
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016F3 A 31 A28 4,150 103,665 100,020 2177 252,357 462,969
Balance at 1 April 2016 W2016 4 A1 0 2 &8 4150 103,665 100,020 2177 252,357 462,969
Total comprehensive income FE2ANALE
for the year 46,299 46,299
Transactions with owners REEAZRS
Employee share option scheme: [EERMENE
— Value of employee services —EEREER - - - 479 13 502
Divicends relating to 2016 BE01652EE 13 - - - - (6,640) (6,640)
Dividends relating to 2017 BENI7EZRE 13 - - - - (6,640) (6,640)
Total transactions with owners,  HEEBAZRZHAE
recognised directly in equity ERRERRR - - - 479 - -
Balance at 31 March 2017 R2017F3 A3 Azkeh 4150 103,665 100,020 3,256 285,489 496,580
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\«T\/\fﬁi == i’%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z 201743 A 31 B L F/E

Year ended 31 March
HE3A3IHIEFE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE T FH&TT
Cash flows from operating activities RJEXKFBHRLRE
Cash used in from operations KERMAES 14 (75,976) (78,525)
Interest paid EARFE (18,464) (15,653)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNBEEFEH (12,275) (11,943)
Net cash used in from operating RIS R85
activities (106,715) (106,121)
Cash flows from investing activities REEXKMERERE
Purchase of property, BEWE  BELEE
plant and equipment (1,648) (64)
Purchase of other asset BEHEMEE (1,100) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLERE
investment - (625)
Interest received EHFILE - -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFRAREF8E (2,748) (689)
Cash flows from financing activities BEXBEHAERERE
Repayment of bank and other BEIRTIT R E A& X
borrowings (1,224,365) (593,716)
Proceeds from new bank and other I ERTT R EAER
borrowings Fr1S 508 1,360,866 643,351
(Decrease)/increase in amount due ER—RHRZEWEA R
to a fellow subsidiary FIBCRA), 5 (19,251) 49,720
Dividend paid ERRE (18,280) (15,770)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITESSHIA 21,240
Net cash generated from BEFBMSIREFH
financing activities 103,970 104,825
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESEEBYURDFEHE
cash equivalents (5,493) (1,985)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzREMReEED
at beginning of the year 20,791 22,776
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEESRESEEY
at end of the year 24 15,298 20,791
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tin Ching Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board for
issue on 27 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and available-for-sale
investment, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2016:

° Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations — Amendments to HKFRS
11

° Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation —
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

° Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
cycle, and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current year
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretation are effective for
annual periods beginning 1 January 2016 and
have not been early adopted in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SASNHEHE&)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

21 REEEE)
211 EFBERBEER 22 H

(Continued) (&)
(b) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted (b) HARERAZFETER R
(Continued) BEE)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ BRI ISREERIFE R
[ERTA]

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July
2014. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that
relates to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s
business model and the contractual cash flow

BB ISREERIFE R
[CRITA|BMlsmE
EktBBEZSE
AERER BAEME
R R O5E 7 TR
ARHR2014F7H B o
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BIZE30sihE ST
BENfENErE24ES -
BRI MELERFE W
REBEEBLEAER
X WHEIGHEE=
BEEBHE0ME : #s
AR A EFAE

characteristics of the financial assets. Investments 2 ([EAFE
in equity instruments are required to be measured HAEmeEEkE) R

at FVPL with the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) not recycling.
There is now a new expected credit losses model
that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there were
no changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in own credit
risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at FVPL. HKFRS 9 relaxes the
requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship between the
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2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

Contemporaneous documentation is still required
but is different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets. While the
Group has yet to undertake a detailed assessment
of the classification and measurement of financial
assets, derivative financial instrument currently
measured at FVPL which would likely continue to
be measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at FVPL and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SASNHEHE&)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

21 REEEE)
211 EFBERBEER 22 H

(Continued) (&)
(b) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted (b) HARERAZFETER R
(Continued) BEE)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued) EBI R ELERFE o5
[ERITEI(#E)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on

o EER R E REH
EEBR(RYEER

expected credit losses (“ECL") rather than only Bl MIEESet£E]
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS F39HE T 2 EiR D 3%
39. It applies to financial assets classified at HEE BRI E &

amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue

e HERRIZEIHNK
ADBZEMEE - MU

from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, BAFTESAEMEE
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee WHHE2EKITA -

contracts. While the Group has not yet undertaken
a detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new model, it
may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses.
The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard. HKFRS 9 must
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be applied for financial years commencing on or BrvEERE2®R XY
after 1 January 2018. Based on the transitional WPk o FEHA WS B A =
provisions in the completed HKFRS 9, early BEBEHESR T A

adoption in phases was only permitted for annual
reporting periods beginning before 1 February
2015. After that date, the new rules must be
adopted in their entirety. The Group does not
intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory
effective date.
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2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

The Group intends to quantify the potential impact
of HKFRS 9 once it is practicable to provide
reliable estimates.

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services
and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts.
The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its mandatory effective date. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 to the Group, but is of the view that the
standard will not have significant impact, when
applied, on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SASMNHEHE&)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

21 REEEE)
211 EFBERBEER 22 H

(Continued) (&)
(b)  New standards and interpretation not yet adopted (b) EERERNZ FETER R
(Continued) BEE)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being

BEVBRELAE 16
5 [HHE ]
BEVHRELRFE 16

recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction RIENLTRAERE
between operating and finance leases is removed. REBEARBERNEDR.

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$2,027,000
(Note 32). However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments will
result in the recognition of an asset and a liability
for future payments and how this will affect the
Group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements
that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its mandatory effective date.
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2

38

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to confirm
with the Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the entities now comprising the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and residential
property for a director. Leasehold land classified as finance
lease and all other property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Land and buildings 40-50 years
— Office equipment 4 years
— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
— Leasehold improvements 4 years
— Motor vehicles 4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as “fair value gains on
revaluation of investment properties”.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.1

2.8.2

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise loans receivable, interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Notes 2.11, 2.12, 2.13 and 2.14).

Available-for-sales financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When financial assets classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

(c) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

(d)

(e)

It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the company may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.1

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are property mortgage loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from property
mortgage loans granted to customers in the ordinary course of
business.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEASHEEHE &)
(Continued)
2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 214 HEeRBELEEY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are
included in cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows if the bank overdrafts
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. In the
consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdrafts
are shown within “Bank and other borrowings” in current
liabilities.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.
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effective interest method. 2o

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

()

(d)

Pension obligations

For employees in Hong Kong, the Group has a defined
contribution plan. The Group pays contributions to
trustee-administered pension funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employment
costs when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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BT R B vt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEASHEEHE &)
(Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued) 220 EE®R (&)
(d) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (d) UERGEEURMGAER 2
(Continued) ARG (E)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of
their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the
related outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the
related loans and advances together with the related
impairment allowances are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequently,
repossessed assets are measured at cost less impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

(@) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(b) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.24 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to various types of financial
risks: market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Market risk — Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its bank and
other borrowings (Note 29), bonds (Note 30) and an
amount due to a fellow subsidiary (Note 33(b)). Bank
and other borrowings and an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by
cash held at variable rates. Bonds issued at fixed rates
are subject to fair value interest rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest-rate risk. The Group manages its cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk mainly by adjusting the
interest rates on loans granted to customers.

As at 31 March 2017, if market interest rates had been
1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$2,860,000 lower/higher (2016: HK$2,123,000),
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
bank and other borrowings and an amount due to a
fellow subsidiary carried at variable rates, partially offset
by cash held at variable rates.

Although bonds issued at fixed rates are subject to fair
value interest rate risk, they are not remeasured in the
financial statement in response to changes in market
interest rates and therefore changes in market interest
rate would not affect the reported profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables and
deposits and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying
amount of these balances represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets which are stated as follows:

3

MERERE)
3.1 MBEREEE)
(b) FERR

AEBZEERREIEREI
ERBEEFEY  BEEFR
JE W) B IA B iz & o HAth B UK
KR EEHECDEREER
R IKBEERZSEER
o BRAGSRIREERASEE
BT SR Al BB EE T E R 2
RAEERR :

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BIsE FET FHT
Loans receivable fEUWE R 19 819,042 674,056
Interest receivables FEWFI B 21 17,887 15,197
Deposits and other receivables &4 N E b & U 5k T8 22 3,259 150
Cash and cash equivalents BENBSEEY 24 15,298 20,791
855,486 710,194

Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are REBAZYBR L RESEE

deposited in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, which the Group’s management believes are of
high credit quality.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is no
independent rating, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the customer based on the customer’s financial
position, past experience and other factors. For
mortgage loans, the Group holds collateral against loans
receivable and interest receivables in the form of
mortgages over property. Majority of the collateral are
residential properties, commercial properties and
industrial properties and all of the collaterals are located
in Hong Kong. Individual risk limits are set based on the
value of collaterals provided by customers and internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored. For personal loans, the Group assesses the
credit quality of the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience, internal and external
credit rating of the customers and other factors. The
credit quality classification of loans receivable and their
respective interest receivables using the Group’s credit
rating system is set out in the table below:

3

BERRER (&)
3.1 BEERBEZE)
(b) EERRE)

TR AR 2 ST A R B Ak 2
Al AEBEEERESNES
BHEFPEREBEREF Z2EER
R BEBYAA BAEH
REBEEF 2MBARR - BEX
BREMARTIEAEF 2EE
BE-piiRiBERME - A%
ELAMEE R 2 A ERE
AN WA BRF BRI - K
SEERARREEME BE
MERTEYE - B2 EHEMA
mIGUREBREA o &5 @R
REBENE PR HERMZ
EBEEXBRBREZREZREM
1T 2 ARSI AR R AR EETE -
THEREERBZEAE
e RIAERME - AEEH
REZP 2 MBRR - BEXR
B BHEREP 2N EEINE
EEFRAREMRAEFEE
FPzEEEZR - REAEEE
B AL BRERRES
BREKANBZEEE RS AN
T

As at 31 March

MW3A31H
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Performing [E#) 825,875 676,634
Doubtful KER 15,614 15,152
Loss &8 1,761 -
Gross loans and interest receivables FEWE T & ) BB EE 843,250 691,786

EBAEEEEERAR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

For mortgage loans, the Group considers the loans and
respective interest receivables as doubtful if the
repayment of principal and/or of interest has been
overdue for more than 3 months and principal, accrued
interest and/or future interest may not be fully secured
by the fair value of collateral at its estimated selling
price. The Group considers the loans and respective
interest receivables as loss if the repayment of principal
and/or interest has been overdue for more than 3 months
and the collection of principal and interest in full is
considered improbable after exhausting all collection
efforts such as realisation of collateral and initiation of
legal proceedings. The Group estimates and recognises
impairment losses for the loans and interest receivables
considered as “doubtful” and “loss”, taking into account
the fair values of the collateral at estimated selling prices
which are inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables.

For personal loans, the Group considers the loans and
respective interest receivables as doubtful if the
repayment of principal and/or of interest has been
overdue for more than 1 month. The Group considers
the loans and respective interest as loss if the repayment
of principal and/or of interest has been overdue for more
than 3 months or the customer had been declared
bankrupted.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and interest receivables are summarised as

BERRER (&)
3.1 BEERBEZE)
(b) EERRE)
FEURE SR R F BBt an T

follows:
As at 31 March
M3 A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired REEATFARE 764,274 617,078
Past due but not impaired BaHiERRE 61,601 59,556
Individually impaired EERIRE 17,375 15,152
Gross loans and interest receivables FEWE R R F 2485 843,250 691,786
Less: provision for impairment B R E R
— Individually assessed — {E R FEH (8,150) (1,791)
— Collectively assessed — BERET(Y (1,410) (742)
— Loans and interest receivables — MEH R E R
written off RAE (1,761) -
Net loans and interest receivables JEWE K &) BFEE 836,929 689,253

As at 31 March 2017, loans and interest receivables of
HK$61,601,000 (2016: HK$59,556,000) were past due
but not impaired. These were related to a number of
third party customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Group are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary for these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the respective principals and/or interests that
had been overdue were still fully secured by the fair
values of collaterals at their respective estimated selling
prices. Accordingly, these balances are still considered
to be fully recoverable.

R2017E3 A31H » EWER
¥ # £.61,601,0007% 7t (2016
£ : 59,556,000 7T ) E % 5
BERRE - ZERBEBS RS
BT Bpr S B R ek 2 B =
BFE - REBELR  BARE
BEEEWEEAES B
BEBAAS R KA SRR
KRMES AT HEENHE
ZAFEREEE BEAEE
EERBBARZSHEHIED
WERE - At ZSEHRD
WAR AR 2 HURE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, individually impaired loans and
interest receivables of HK$15,614,000 (2016:
HK$15,152,000) was secured by the fair value of
collaterals at their respective market price amounting to
HK$12,464,000 (2016: HK$13,361,000). As the
respective collaterals were inadequate to cover the
respective outstanding loans and interest receivables,
individually assessed impairment allowance of
HK$3,150,000 (2016: HK$1,791,000) was recognised for
these balances.

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired
loans and interest receivables is as follows:

3

MBEREEE)
BB E & ()

3.1

(b)

EER (&)
R2017E3A31H - B @ 58
B2 R E R & F 515,614,000
FBIT(20164F : 15,152,000787T)
EEFRESAMETEZA
I {E 12,464,000 7T (2016 4F -
13,361,000 7T ) {EHE - R
EREARTENERESAZ
KB ERERRFE  H]E
Tz SR ERERITE ZR
{E#H#53,150,0008 7T (2016 4F :
1,791,000 7T) °

ZEDBRERRERKER
RMBZREDITIT

As at 31 March

MR3A31H
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
0-30 days 0-30 k% 6,581 8,124
31-90 days 31-90 % 28,893 13,238
Over 90 days BiEo0X 26,127 38,194
61,601 59,556

As at 31 March 2017, mortgage and personal loans
receivable of HK$1,216,000 (2016: Nil), HK$545,000
(2016: Nil), respectively, had been written off. These
relates to customers who are in financial difficulties and
in the opinion of the directors, such loans receivable are
uncollectible.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group performs collective assessment of loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping
together all its receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics. The impairment review is carried out on
all those receivables based on the historical impairment
rates. The historical impairment rate is arrived at taking
the average of the most recent 3 financial years of the
percentage of impairment loss and write-off recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
to the total loans and interest receivables as at the
respective year end dates. The historical impairment
rate for the year ended 31 March 2017 was 0.19% (2016:
0.11%).

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose to
management of the Company on a monthly basis the
amount of provision to be made.

The Group generally grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio of no more than 70% of the value in the valuation
report of the property for first property mortgage, and
where it is subordinate property mortgage, the
aggregate lending from all lenders to the customer
should not exceed 70% of the value of the underlying
property. Approval from directors of the subsidiary of the
Company, a credit manager and a credit officer is
needed for loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that
exceeds 70%. The directors meet regularly to review the
loan-to-value ratio and when (1) there is a significant
change in the property price index in Hong Kong; or (2)
when loans are renewed. The directors consider that the
credit risk arising from loans and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the property held as collateral,
with reference to the estimated market value of the
property which were valued by independent third party
valuers as at the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 20% (2016: 19%) of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2017. They accounted for
approximately 16% (2016: 23%) of the gross loans
receivable balances as at 31 March 2017.

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal financial position ratio targets
and, if applicable external regulatory or legal
requirements.

The Group’s primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank
borrowings, bonds, an amount due to a fellow subsidiary
and operating expenses.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

MR EE (F)

3.1 BEEREZEE)

(c) *RBELER(E)
TEREBBEREHREE L
Az R E D AREEZ
cREBEEEBIHAREL
DT REFMEZESTEAEN
RAFRBERE ©

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Within one year: 1R :
Trade and other payable B 5 NMEMENRIE 6,972 5,644
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary EAN—HERZRE
KNG R 69,700 88,951
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 315,752 179,251
Bonds L 6,705 6,705
399,129 280,451
Two to five years: DB
Bonds &5 25,927 26,820
Over five years: 5|
Bonds E% 121,274 127,087

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure

to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.

3.2 BRARBRER

AEBERRAZ BERAREAEE

Lk 4ok 43 g A
REFS B E

T AR EIR B R
BEARGHE AR

DA e F Bz

{2 BRANZR 18 DORVE IR AN BROARS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and
other borrowings’, ‘bonds’ and ‘amount due to a fellow
subsidiary’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less pledged bank deposit and cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated statements of financial position. The Group’s
strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratio and net
cash position of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

3

MR EE (F)

3.2

BARBRER (&)
NEBUEEG B R BEEETR
AN o iRt RIRETS F AR AR AN EE
FLGETHE - B FEABRAE(R
BERAEVBHRRARAMRZ [BITR
Hipfgs ] [EFH] RIEMN—FER
RMBARIRIE D BB IR TER
HIB S RIBSEEY - RABE AR
EHBEHRRERAI R [ 8-
AEBMZRBEERTE  AEER
2017F3A31HZEEABLEERR
WEARRFEMOT ¢

As at 31 March

M3HA31H

2017 2016

2017 % 2016 4F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

BsE FET FET

Total bank and other borrowings RITRHME a5 29 315,752 179,251
Bonds (EE2 30 113,797 111,451
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & —E[F & B A 71318 69,700 88,951
Less: cash and cash equivalents W BRBENIREEEY 24 (15,298) (20,791)
Net debt BT 483,951 358,862
Total equity Lz Ey LS 496,580 462,969
Gearing ratio BEEAGBHE 0.97 0.78

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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&) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B EREE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 DFEfLE

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TREBHEATLEFMBHBERMZ

carried at fair value as at 31 March 2017 by level of inputs to MASBEEL DT AEER2017

valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs FIAIBBLAFEEYEZS/R T

are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy B - 5@ AZBIB L Y EART

as follows: BEEBRN=EZR :

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — R-EBEEREBEELEBRTSZ
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). WECRERAR)(E—R) -

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 — BRBEERE—RZIBEIN B
that are observable for the asset or liability, either EXBEzZAUBEEEZ(AE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived %) kFEE(BREE®) @A
from prices) (level 2). B (BE=R) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on —  WIHEKBABERMSEEmE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) EZEERBERASED
(level 3). THERGABIE) (F=4) -

As at 31 March
MR3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Level 2 financial asset E_RemEE

Available-for-sale investment A ERE 625 625

See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for BN T EAE 2 REMENTE

disclosures of the fair value estimation of investment properties et 2 WEBLRHG A VB REMN T

that are measured at fair value. 16 °

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the RERE—P - F_QRFE=M2M

year. AR R o
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of loans, interest and other receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans,
interest and other receivables based on an estimate of
the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are
applied to loans, interest and other receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of loans, interest and other receivables
requires the use of estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and provision for
impairment losses in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

(b) Investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined
annually by similar transaction on an open market in
existing use basis. In making the judgement,
consideration has been given to assumptions that are
mainly on market conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period and appropriate capitalisation rates of
rental income.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, all of the Group’s
revenue was generated from the money lending business of
providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong
Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from such loans
offered to the Group’s customers. Information reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused
on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and no discrete financial information is
available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about the
Group’s products and services are presented.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income recognised during
the year are as follows:
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ELERURBBEN -

W g & E A

W EBRBRUEMERBERRIMAE
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Year ended 31 March
HZE3AZIHIEFE

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHET
Revenue &

Interest income FEWA 103,658 111,273

Other income EblA
Rental income el A 2,031 2,124
Sundry income FETEUA 1 3
2,032 2,127
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

7

BMEED ZMAX

Year ended 31 March
BHEIAIALEE

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P RE FHT FHT
Employee benefit expenses BEBAHX
(excluding directors’ emolument) (TBEESEH) 8 9,854 8,293
Directors’ emolument ik 5,945 6,925
Advertising and marketing expenses ~ EE R &MY 6,911 7,793
Legal and professional fees FEREXEER 2,034 1,908
Rent and rates e k= 244 219
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN B &
— audit services — R 1,000 950
— non-audit services — IR BURTS 250 250
Bank charges RITHRZ 363 169
Referral fee #NER 1,747 600
Valuation and search fee HEREMEA 343 159
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BENMRETE
equipment 15 3,069 2,807
Provision for individual impairment of gtrEW E I ERRE
loans receivable TEH B4 19 1,359 1,791
Provision for collective impairment of Bt fE U & F a2 a8 wi(E
loans receivable B B HE 19 668 742
Loans and interest receivables W E R A B
written off 19 1,761 -
Provision for impairment of U EE ERE
repossessed asset TEH B4 23 - 435
Loss on disposal of repossessed asset B EU[EE EE1E 23 77 -
Other expenses HEmAX 3,195 3,407
38,820 36,448

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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B 155 3 2= B =
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 8 EEEANEX(FEIEEEMD)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Year ended 31 March
HEIASIALFE

2017 2016
2017 % 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHT
Salaries and bonus e RIEAL 8,831 6,186
Share options expense granted to MESRDZERERS
employees 326 1,559
Other benefits HAib1aF| 20 38
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKERA — REHK
plans (Note) =HEI (e 677 510
9,854 8,293
Note: BT -
The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF AEBBEESRFERTES K2 EEHIER
scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Bt gl([BBeTE)) BERBESFER
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer FAAREINHEEZSEARESHBEKAZ
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the 5% (% A LR A1,500%8T) M8 fE S s8R -
employee’s relevant income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF TERELF BN AEEZE—BEAMTEIE
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF scheme is PR MR o BEAR 2R U R AT 1R A AR R
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited EREM 2 -

contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 3 directors for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
3), whose emoluments are reflected in Note 9. The emoluments
payable to the remaining 2 individuals for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: 2), are as follows:

BEERFBEX(TEREEHNS)
(&)

hEREHAL
HZE2017F3A31HILFE AEBRE
e ATEEIA(20165F : 3B )ES
ZEWEE RN - REE2017F
SA3THILFE BT 2% (20164 :
2RV EEFALTZMEWT ¢

Year ended 31 March
HEIASIALFE

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and bonus Fre RIEAL 1,781 1,768
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKE A — REHETE] 36 36
1,817 1,804

The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

biismHALzHMSEENT

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A3THIFE

2017 2016

2017 F 2016 4F

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

AH AH

Nil — HK$500,000 £ - 500,000 7T = -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 /& 7T — 1,000,000 T 2 2
2 2

1 1 6 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT Rk MY

9 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTOR 9 EEEMNREA
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: AARZEZZMEENOT -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s HZE2017F3A31BILEERIEA
services as a director, whether of the Company or its EEARNTHENE DT EKIRM
subsidiary undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2017: BARBEZEf e EWENS -
Estimated
money value Employer's
of other  contribution
Discretionary benefits to the MPF
Fees Salaries bonuses (Note) Scheme Total
HitfgHz BEE
fht &% Eig 4
ik i BEta  EEMD EEHR Af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT TET TER
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Chan Koung Nam BXELE - 1,461 278 93 18 1,850
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William BHELE - 1,461 278 933 18 2,690
Mr. Tse Pui To FEBEE - 1,219 508 80 18 1,825
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond k&L E 120 = = = = 120
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry RRmELE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REIE LA 120 - - - - 120
420 4141 1,064 1,106 54 6,785
ERCEEEARAR

2017 F 3R

117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R P ot

9  BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTOR (Continued) 9 #EEMR K (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2016: HZE2016F3A31HILFE :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s HZEZ2016 F3A31BHIEFEMIEA
services as a director, whether of the Company or its EEAARANTSENB AR ERIRME
subsidiary undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2016: BARBEZEf e EWENS -
Estimated
money value Employer's
of other  contribution
Discretionary benefits to the MPF
Fees Salaries bonuses (Note) Scheme Total

AtpiEdz wiEE

fhat &% italz
ik e BfgrEa  BEMWD) EE#H ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Chan Koung Nam BRtmLE - 1,394 371 425 18 2,208
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam B E%4E - 1,394 371 1,265 18 3,048
Mr. Tse Pui To HEBEE - 1,141 562 368 18 2,089

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond ~ FRJK& % £ 120 - - - - 120

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry Rzt 180 - - - 180

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REEEE 120 - - - 120

420 3,929 1,304 2,058 54 7,765

Note: gL

Other benefits include share option benefits of HK$93,000 (2016: B b 18 7 B 45 B A% 7 48 593,000 7T

HK$425,000) and the estimated money value for rental of the (2016 4F : 425,000/ 7T ) LA K F AN = [

residential property owned by the Group and used by Mr. Chan Kwong BERABREEGERZEEME 2HEMH

Yin William of HK$840,000 (216: HK$840,000). FTEH(E(E840,000/87T(20164F : 840,000
BIT) °

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination (b) EFENEEBERER

benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement B EE R AT E RURER S 2 X

benefits or termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil). E fa] 3R O A ) Sl B B 48 7 (2016 4F -
fm) e

1 1 8 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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9

10

BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTOR (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodied corporate by and connected
entities with such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2016: Nil).

FINANCE COSTS

9

10

ESEN RN #)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEREOF=ZFRERM2ZK
&
HE2017F3A31BILEFE &
RESRBAE=FTRERE x5
= FINERRAE (2016 F : &) °

FRLUES ZEFZAEHE
REZEZESTREZEESR
BHmACER  EERKHAM
RZEF

BEBMNES  ZIEHEABRER
HZEEEHRECERRATEALZ
B EERSEMKR S (2016 F :
)

BEERNRS  THIESHNZE
KER

BRMI TR E I HEFRR
RERNTARRE - NARWELT T
ERNEEEKEBERNRREER
EhHEAEAER (EREESEE)
ZERRG RHERAEH (2016 F :
;) o

B KA

Year ended 31 March
HESASTALFE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Interest on secured bank borrowings REFARAZHIEE 2 FEIBRTT
wholly repayable within 5 years BRFE 7,896 4,596
Interest on bank overdraft HRITHE A E 367 676
Interest on amount due to e —REIR KB AR FIEFE
a fellow subsidiary 4,091 4,416
Interest and other expenses on bonds EHE2MEREMFAS 9,051 8,731
Interest on other borrowings HAB AR S 762 890
22,167 19,309
BERECEEEEAERAA
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11  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

FrEBiRx
RAFEE R GTERREF 2165%
(20164 : 16.5%) L EBFEHIFHRERE

RiFE ZEEBARINR SRS RS

Year ended 31 March
HESASIALFE

2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET

Hong Kong profits tax BRENEH
— Current year — REE 8,157 9,970
— Under/(over) provision in prior years — BEFETR (B8 BE 234 (73)
Deferred income tax RIEFTS R (27) (315)
8,364 9,582

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise as follows:

AEBBRAAEVANENEE 2 HIALE R
SRR AT

Year ended 31 March
HEIAIALEE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Profit before income tax MR TSR Az 54,663 57,643
Calculated at Hong Kong profits BEBFEHHE16.5%TH
tax rate of 16.5% 9,019 9,511
Under/(over) provision in prior year BEFETR(HBE) B HE 234 (73)
Income not subject to taxation BARBRIA (1,642) (595)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R 442 826
Utilisation of previously unrecognised R EA R ERBIIEEE
tax losses 311 (87)
Income tax expense i 8,364 9,582

1 20 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$46,299,000
(2016: HK$48,061,000) by the weighted average number of
415,000,000 (2016: 415,000,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

12 SREF

(a)

BREAREF
FREARRF ZFAEF X AEBRAR
B A FE 15 & 746,299,000 JT
(2016 4F : 48,061,00078 7T ) K& LA &
E2017F3A3MBILEREDBITY
% 2 N #E T 15 #0415,000,000 %
(2016 4F : 415,000,000 f%) °

Year ended 31 March
HEIASIALFE

2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 72 B1#E 5 A JE(h % 7
(HK$'000) (F%7T) 46,299 48,061
Weighted average number of HAEEREREBHZ
ordinary shares in issue for BETEERY
basic earnings per share (‘000) e & (FAR) 415,000 415,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) TRRERZF GBW) 11.2 11.6
(b) SREBER

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016
is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the
share option scheme are the only dilutive potential ordinary
shares of the Company. For the share options, the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options less the number of shares that could have
been issued at fair value (determined as the average market
price per share for the year) for the same total proceeds is the
number of shares issued for no consideration. The resulting
number of shares issued for no consideration is included in
the weighted average number of ordinary shares as the
denominator for calculating diluted earnings per share.

HE2016F3A31HILEEZER
BEAF  DRJLBMERETE
SHEELER - BREERITEINYG
BRI IIEETE - IRIRERE
TR PRI RN ARARE—A
BEEEE TRk - SERER
T BRITEERETRERIT R
N B REASRBRMEFBEEEZA
FE(DERFRASRFAMEET)
AT ZRHEE  AATRE
BITZBRMEE » B SHUTRE
BOIZBROBERTESRESRF
Brat AMEARS B2 T @R INEFY
o

BEREEEEARARA
2017 3R
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

12 BRERN &)

(b) BRBFERN (&)

Year ended 31 March
HESASIALFE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7N T A A FE(G % 7
(HK$'000) (F#T) 46,299 48,061
Weight average number of HAETREERT 2
ordinary shares in issue for BEITEERY
diluted earnings per share (‘000) IniEFEHE(FR) 415,000 415,741
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) TRESERF GBL) 11.2 11.6

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2017 do not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options were higher than the average
market price of the shares of the Company during the year.

13 DIVIDENDS
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 of
HK1.1 cents per share, totaling HK$4,565,000, is to be declared at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

HREZE2017F3A31 B LFERRITEBR
RZITEESRARATRNFHME  MAEX

FEZBEEERNEYERRANRABRERE
1TfE
13 KRR

ARABBREERERAFAETIRESR
2017 F3 A31 AILEFEZRBKRE T
AL A LA 4,565,000 © ZEMBHH
RIERBZERMTRE -

Year ended 31 March
HESASIALFE

2017 2016
2017 2016 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK1.6 cents B EREER 1.6 811
(2016: HK1.9 cents) per share (2016 4F = 1.9781l) 6,640 7,885
Proposed final dividend of HK1.1 cents FARER B ER 1.1 810
(2016: HK1.6 cents) per share (2016 4F : 1.6581l) 4,565 6,640
11,205 14,525

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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14 CASH USED IN FROM OPERATIONS 14 REMABRSE

Year ended 31 March
BHEIAIALEE

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P RE FHT FHT
Profit before income tax R P15 %54 Al A 54,663 57,643
Adjustments for: BTN SIBEL A -
Depreciation & 15 3,069 2,807
Interest expenses AR 10 22,167 19,309
Fair value gain on investment KEMERNFERE
properties 16 (9,960) -
Share-based employee LARR 1D B ERE 2 18 B 3R
compensation 592 2,777
Provision for individual impairment B E R ER R E RS
assessment of loans receivable TEL B 19 1,359 1,791
Provision for collective impairment MEWEREERET S
assessment of loans receivable B B HE 19 668 742
Provision for impairment of FULE & EREIE L B
repossessed asset 23 77 435
Proceeds from sale of W B & EMS IR
repossessed asset 23 5,229 -
Loans and interest receivables MEH B E R KR FE
written off 7 1,761 -
Changes in working capital: LiEESEE
Loans receivable FEUCE R (148,774) (160,981)
Interest receivables FEWR S, (2,690) (3,710)
Prepayments, deposits and FERIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H th e W R IE (4,208) 11
Trade and other payables B R HAFERFIR 71 651
Cash used in from operations KEMARS (75,976) (78,525)

suiaanfier 13
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥¥  BERRZE
Land and Office Furniture Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment  and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
THRET BARE  EARRE HEVMERE & CEl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
THL TAL TRL TRL THL T

At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H

Cost AR 68,036 538 1,404 3,564 2,774 76,316
Acoumulated depreciation and impairment  BEHHTERE(E (7,259) (315) (1,182) (3,135) (1022) (12913)
Net book amount FEFE 60,777 223 202 429 1,752 63,403
Year ended 31 March 2016 HEN16F3ANAIEE

Opening net book amount ENRETE 60,777 23 22 429 1752 63,403
Additions AE - 37 27 - = 64
Depreciation Vil (1,491) (98) (176) (349) (693) (2,807)
Closing net book amount FREETE 59,286 162 73 80 1,009 60,660
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A 318

Cost KR 68,036 575 1,431 3,564 2,174 76,380
Acoumulated depreciation and impairment  EHE RiAiE (8,750) (413) (1,358) (3,484) (1715) (15,720)
Net book amount FEFE 59,286 162 73 80 1,059 60,660
Year ended 31 March 2017 HENTEIANAILEE

Opening net book amount FNRESE 50,286 162 73 80 1059 60,660
Transfer from investment properties HBRARENE 22,290 - - - - 22,290
Additions RE - 892 365 391 - 1,648
Depreciation ik (1,937) (269) (83) (87) (693) (3,069)
Closing net book amount FREESE 79,639 785 355 384 366 81529
At 31 March 2017 R2017£3A318

Cost KR 90,326 1,467 1,79 3,955 2,174 100,318
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  BHHE RiAiE (10687) (682) (1441) (3571) (2.408) (18,789)
Net book amount FEFE 79,639 785 355 384 366 81,529
At 31 March 2017, the Group’s land and buildings with net book M2017F3A31H » REBKREFENR
value of approximately HK$79,639,000 (2016: HK$59,286,000) were 79,639,000/ 7T(20164F : 59,286,000/ 7T)
pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to two 2 REFEER T —HRITERLR
subsidiaries of the Company (Note 29(ii)). RIFE TN B AR ERBITERZER

(Pft 5 29(ii)) °

1 24 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT R B vt

16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 REYHE

As at 31 March

MR3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 ¢
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
At beginning of year RFA] 76,860 76,860
Fair value gains NSRS 9,960 -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment HEEYE  WERXE (22,290) =
At end of the year RFR 64,530 76,860

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligation for future repairs and maintenance (2016: Nil). At 31
March 2017 and 2016, the investment properties of the Group were
pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to a
subsidiary of the Company (Note 29(i)).

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisals
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment properties as at
31 March 2017 and 2016. The fair value gains are included in “fair
value gains on revaluation of investment properties” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The recurring fair value measurements for investment properties are
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

M2017F 3 A31H » REEIWEF KKK
HIERIREZ ABEC T OER (2016 F -
#7) o A2017FE K 2016F3 A31H » A&
EzREMECDEBE T —RRITERERR
RIET — KB AR ERRITE R ZER
(P 5E 29(i)) °

NEBREMERBYEEGEMESTH
R EERARETE Y EE  UEBETER
BEYER2017F K2016F3A31HZA
FAE o RFERFFFALEETERARZ
[EEEENEZAFEWE] A -

BREMEZEBEUERTFEAEFAZ R
RPEZER - NREBZBRABREMHHIF
MEBTMEKRBREER  BRATESER
MzBAREH NFR F—F F=
MBRE=F MW AR -

BEREEEEARARA
2017 3R
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 March 2017
and 2016 by independent professionally qualified valuer who hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes personnel that review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The results are reported directly to the chief
financial officer (“CFO”") and the audit committee (“AC”). Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC
and the valuer at least once every six months, which is in line with
the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates. As at 31 March 2017
and 2016, the fair values of these investment properties have been
determined by Roma Appraisals Limited.

At each financial year end the finance department verifies all major
inputs to the independent valuation report, assess property
valuations movement when compared to prior year valuation reports;
and holds discussion with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting
date during bi-annual valuation discussions between the CFO, AC
and the valuation team. As part of this discussion, the team presents
a report that explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was determined by using the
sale comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales prices
of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

16 REWE (&)

REE2HEBR
AEEZRENEHBLERAERMGE
B 2017 F } 2016 5F 3 A 31 BT TAE -
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17 SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Group:

17 MEBATR — 28

AT RAEEZHERRIR

Principal activities Particulars of Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation and place of operation issued share capital interest held
e Bl AVE: IEEBREENY BRIRAHE FEERADN
2017 2016
20176 2016
Directly owned:
BEEE:
HKF Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 10,000 ordinary 100% 100%
in Hong Kong shares of US$1 each
RBRAFB RERREER 10,000 kB REE 17T
ZERR
Easylend Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 share of 100% -
in Hong Kong US$1 each
EBRUHS WNEBREER 1REE 1 ETBEH
Indirectly owned:
BEHE
Asia Ford Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary 100% 100%
inHong Kong shares
REREBRATF £ RNEBNEREER 10,000 /R & 1%
Charterfame Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary 100% 100%
inHong Kong shares
BEREBRAT £ RNEBNEREER 10,000 /R & 1%
EasylLend Finance Company Hong Kong Money lending business of 25,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited (Formerly known as providing personal loans shares
Oriental Credit (Hong Kong) inHong Kong
Limited R {EEMBEHRAA])
SEBEERRAA 9 REBRELANERZ 25,000,000 & &7k
(RN EERBERLR) REEH
EasyLend Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 share of HK$1 each 100% -
HERBRAA 9 Tmex 1REE 1B KD
Hong Kong Finance Company Hong Kong Money lending 100,000,000 100% 100%
Limited business of providing ordinary shares
property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong
BEEENBARAF 9 REBRENERBEN 100,000,000 f &3
HMERE
Max Art Limited Hong Kong Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
BEERAT BE IEex 10,000 R &Mk
ERCEEEARAR

2017 F 3R
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

128

18 REHIE D

ZE@MTA

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Assets per consolidated statement of BEMBRRRFAREE
financial position
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIA
Loans receivable FEUE K 819,042 674,056
Interest receivables FE U I B 17,887 15,197
Deposits and other receivables R4e M HE i el I8 3,259 150
Cash and cash equivalents ReELRESZEY 15,298 20,791
Total A 855,486 710,194
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESREE
Available-for-sale investment AEfHERE 625 625
Liabilities per consolidated statement of BEMBERRRFAREE
financial position
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost BRI &R A S 6,972 5,544
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMER TR 5,473 4,896
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JEA<F — 1 [R) 2B B8 1 B K8 69,700 88,951
Bank and other borrowings HRITREMER 315,752 179,251
Bonds &% 113,797 111,451
Total & 506,221 385,197

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE 19 EBKRER
As at 31 March
R3A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Loans receivable TEWE R 825,363 676,589
Less: Provision for individual impairment B B EMCE A R R E R
assessment of loans receivable {E B (3,150) (1,791)
Provision for collective impairment T E SRR E S
assessment of loans receivable {EL B (1,410) (742)
Loans receivable written off s B E R (1,761) =
Loans receivable, net of provision JEUE SR - IR HER 819,042 674,056
Less: non-current portion B IERENEL S (59,039) (97,527)
Current portion mENER D 760,003 576,529

The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans
in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loans receivable of HK$17,325,000 (2016: Nil) which are
unsecured, loans receivable are secured by collaterals provided by
customers, bear interest and are repayable with fixed terms agreed

with the customers.

Movements on the Group’s individual impairment of loans receivable

are as follows:

AEEREEFRRENRBBREMELRE
ERBAAERZRERT - WETTAHE

¥ A %017,325,000 % 7T (2016 F « 4% ) 2 JE
WERAEEIRIN  BREFATFIEME
ZHEFRDEAEIR  FTERAEREEPZ
T2 ETEERAERE -

AEBERKERBERREZ ZSHNT

Year ended 31 March
HESASTALFE

2017 2016

20174 2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$’000

FAT FAT

At beginning of the year RE) 1,791 -
Provision for individual impairment of FEWE R ERRE

loans receivable {EH B 1,359 1,791

At end of the year RF LR 3,150 1,791

BERECEEEEAERAA

2017 F 3R
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, additional collective impairment of loans
receivable of HK$668,000 (2016: HK$742,000) was made. The
Group performs collective impairment assessment of loans
receivable by grouping together all its receivables with similar credit
risk characteristics and by applying a historical impairment rate,
taking the average of the most recent 3 financial years of the
percentage of impairment loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income to the total loans and interest
receivables as at the respective year end dates.

Movements on the Group’s collective impairment of loans receivable
are as follows:

19 BRER@E)

20173 A31H * iEWEREELEE
AN B #E SE {H668,000/8 JT(20164F :
742,00087T) - AREE RS EMERE
ERBSBEMU ERGRIE - WHARE
W E R EWNE FOE{T R ET S - B
FREXHEASEIEAVREELREEEA
WARMERBRAEBEGEETER 2k
WEREMNEREE S L2 FIEFE -

AEBERKRERBRREZZSHINT

Year ended 31 March
HEIASIALFE

2017 2016

2017 % 2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At beginning of the year REFA] 742 -
Provision for collective impairment of FLIEWE R RE

loans receivable {EH B 668 742

At end of the year RFR 1,410 742

As at 31 March 2017, loans receivable amounted to HK$1,761,000
(2016: Nil) had been written off. These relates to customers who are
in financial difficulties and in opinion of the directors, such loans
receivable are uncollectible.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the maturity date, net of provision, is as

HR201743A318 » BifiiEEUE k1,761,000
HIT(20164F « #&) o 5% 5 R IE B ¥ 81 B
R E2FEH WESRE ZFTREIK
ER@EA AR -

REZHE - BRERMGRBEEHERN RS
HIRZ BIHERT

follows:
As at 31 March

M3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 £F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Current BN HA 760,003 576,529
2-5 years 2E5F 21,213 73,479
Over 5 years 5L+ 37,826 24,048
819,042 674,056

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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20

21

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 19 BREXRE)
As at 31 March 2017, certain properties mortgaged to the subsidiary MN2017E3H831H  EFHEWBFALG 2
of the Company for loans granted to its respective customers were WEATILNAHABEPESERZYE
pledged to independent third party to secure bank and other BEEWTBYIE=F (EAEXETRE
borrowings granted (Note 29(iii)). b A K 2 AR (B 5 29(iii)) ©
OTHER ASSET 20 Hh&EE
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group subscribed for a HZE2017F3A3MHILFE  ZEEHE
third party customer credit report checking service. The nature and F-FRPEEREEER - ZIBEE
carrying value of this asset held as at 31 March 2017 are MNo017E3A31 A2 ME LR ER M0
summarised as follows: T:
Year ended 31 March
HESASIALFE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other asset, at cost HMBE - 1=K 1,100 -
The Group’s other asset is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. REE EMEEEITEE ©
INTEREST RECEIVABLES 21 ERFRE
As at 31 March
M3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 2016 fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHET
Interest receivables FEUFIE 17,887 15,197

The Group’s interest receivables, which arise from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for interest receivables of HK$412,000 (2016: Nil) which are
unsecured, interest receivables are secured by collaterals provided
by customers and repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers.

AEBEERMNERENRBBREMELRE
ERBAAERZRERT - WETTAHE

B 5 20412,000%8 7T (2016 4F « &) 7 FEUR
B AEEEIN - IR B AR FIRE
B RIEAREE  ARERFREZETE
HABR (R o

BEREEEEARARA
2017 3R
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132

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 FafMFIE - BRERHEMEWSIE
As at 31 March
M3 A31H
2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Prepayments TR I 1,936 837
Deposits by 1,800 146
Others HAh 1,459 4
5,195 987
The Group’s deposits and other receivables are denominated in REE 2 RS R EAESGRIE A TTEHE -
Hong Kong dollars.
All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. T 7B 12 & R H fth 8 U 3R I8 45 5K 460 R 7 0
(=
REPOSSESSED ASSET 23 WEEE
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group obtained an asset HZE2016F3 A1 ALLFE - AEEER
by taking possession of the collateral held as security. The WEHFHIEER BT REE —BEE - &
repossessed asset held by the Group was sold during the year SEFAFKEEEDREZE 2017 F 3 A 31
ended 31 March 2017, at a consideration net of legal and other AIEFEHE - & A5,229,000% 7T (1
expenses, of HK$5,229,000. Accordingly, a loss on disposal of BRZERAEMAZR) - Bt - 5201743
repossessed asset of HK$77,000 was recognised to the A31REHFEZHWRAXRERLEKEE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as at 31 March EEE 77,000 7T °
2017.
As at 31 March
M3 A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
B s FHET FET
Repossessed property at the beginning #4214 5
of the year
— commercial property — EEYE 5,306 5,741
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE 7 - (435)
Loss on disposal of HEWREEERSE 7
repossessed asset (77) -
Proceeds from sale of a repossessed  H & —IEIL B4 & A5 7B
asset (5,229) -
- 5,306

Repossessed asset comprised a property in respect of which the
Group had acquired access or control (e.g. through court
proceedings or voluntary actions by the property concerned) for
release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrower.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24

25

26

RERRTEEY

As at 31 March

MK3H31H
2017 2016
2017 4F 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash at bank RITIRE 15,298 20,791
The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong Be kB ESBYWABITEE -
dollars.
SHARE CAPITAL 25 PR
Number of shares Share capital
RAEE e
2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20166 20176 20164
'000 shares ‘000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Tk TET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEN BT 2EER
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the year RENREL 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIREE
At beginning and end of the year RENREFL 415,000 415,000 4,150 4,150
SHARE OPTIONS 26 fERE

On 1 April 2016, 21,350,000 share options were granted to eligible
directors and selected employees. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$0.89 with a vesting period of 0-2 years. These
share options are exercisable until 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no share options were

granted.

R2016F4A1H EMAEERESE ME
1B B 1% H 21,350,000 170 BE I 4 » :Z 08

Ptz 1T1EER0.89 8T

- REBEAOE?2

F o LFBREAITEEE20204 3 A 31

BHik -

HE2017F3A31HIEFE @ IERLE

Pt

BEREEEEARARA

ores O30
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 26 HEBRRFEE)
Options are conditional on the employee completing 0-2 years of A EE TR0 R 2ERE (RBEH)
service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting one BHAERE - BIRET Y B EIEE —
year and two years from the grant date. The group has no legal or FERMETE AEBTEETHETE
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. {FLATE & Ol B sk A5 E BERGAE -
Movements in share options are as follows: AR EE T
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 ¢
Number of Number of
shares shares
& EE R EE
‘000 shares '000 shares
Th& T
At beginning of year RE] 19,600 -
Granted [REs4us] = 21,350
Lapsed BRM (450) (1,750)
19,150 19,600
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year REZE2016EFE3 /31 BIFEERH Z2ER
ended 31 March 2016 was determined using the binomial valuation EZMEEIHATEFEFRA —_BRAGHEER
model was HK$0.17 per option. The significant inputs into the model ETATMNEBIREOA7TETL  ERZE
were closing share price of HK$0.84 at the date of grant, exercise DI AZE AN BEZ IR U (E0.84
price shown above, volatility of 39%, dividend yield of 5.4%, an BT FNFIRITEE - KIE39% - IR A
expected option life of five years, and an annual risk-free interest KE54% - TBEHEREFRE LT RERRTE
rate of 1.03%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of F T 1.03% o 1% TE BRI (B B 3R ~ 12 (R Bk
expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily R & ZIE T A B EIRT B E BRI A
share closing prices of the Company over past period preceding the NalFREMKTEZStEEs T AE
grant date. % o
RESERVES 27 f##E

The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 79 of this consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the excess of the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefor.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AEBNAFEREF REREEDEE
SHRAGA MHHEET0E 2 A B
FHE -

AEE 2 EARBIERA XA LA
RIBBAWE Z KB R BRD 2 EERD
AR B EITARE BBy 2 B R Z
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 BESNRHMEMSTIE

As at 31 March

MR3HA31H
2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Rental deposits received Bl EZe 438 598
Interest payable on bonds BE% 2 T B 1,357 1,357
Other payables and accrued charges HAth S SRIA R AT SZ 5177 3,589
6,972 5,544

The Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in Hong REEZ B G REAM BN RIBEABITEE -

Kong dollars.

29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 SRITRHEMER
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITREAMBRATET :

As at 31 March

MR3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Bank loans |ITER 236,545 141,565
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 36,207 23,686
Other borrowings Hib g 43,000 14,000
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R HA BB 315,752 179,251

HZE2017F3A31BIEFE  RITEZN
RITBELZMEFHERFEN X AE5.1%
(2016 %F : 3.2%) * ZHR—FNEE -

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank loans and bank
overdraft for the year ended 31 March 2017 was 5.1% (2016: 3.2%)
per annum and repayable within one year.

7 #143,000,0007% 7t (2016 4 : 14,000,000
BIL) 2 EMERAEER BFEMENT
6.0% £ 7.0%(2016 F : 6.5% £ 8.0%) st B. &
AR—FNEE-

The other borrowings of HK$43,000,000 (2016: HK$14,000,000) are
unsecured, bear interest at rates ranging from 6.0% to 7.0% (2016:
6.5% to 8.0%) per annum and repayable within one year.

R20174F K 2016 E3 A31H » FT AR T
BFRIAETTEHE ©

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, all bank borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 RITRHEMMBGERE)
As at 31 March 2017, the bank loans and overdraft utilised by the Ro017E3HA31H ' AEBECFEHZET
Group amounted to HK$272,752,000 (2016: HK$165,251,000) were EH RiE Y A272,752,000 % 7T (2016 £F -
secured by the following: 165,251,000/ 7C) * A NI IBIE AR
(i) investment properties held by the Group amounting to () ZANEBEFAE S % A64,530,000% T
HK$64,530,000 (2016: HK$76,860,000) (Note 16); (2016 € : 76,860,000/ 1) 2 &% &
W2 (Mfi5E16)
(i) land and buildings held by the Group with net book value of (i) AEBE AT E®EFEAT79639,000
HK$79,639,000 (2016: HK$59,286,000) (Note 15); 5 77 (2016 4F : 59,286,000 7T ) 7
T R (MR 15) ¢
(iii)  pledge of certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary of the (i) BHTFEBFARFETHBERRIEE
Company for loans granted to its respective customers. The HEEPESERZEM 2 -
fair value of these properties were approximately ZEYE 2 N F{EA A273,500,000
HK$273,500,000 (2016: Nil) (Note 19); and Bt (20164 < ) (FIE19) + &
(iv) corporate guarantee of the Company. (iv) ARARZEEER-
BONDS 30 f&%
As at 31 March
M3 A31H
Group and Company
EE SV
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT
Unsecured bonds mEIRES 113,797 111,451

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had balances of Bond | and
Bond Il (in aggregate, the “Bonds”) with an aggregate amount of
HK$84,000,000 (2016: HK$84,000,000) and HK$37,000,000 (2016:
37,000,000), before placing commission, respectively, with coupon
rates of 6.0% (2016: 6.0%) and 4.5% (2016: 4.5%) per annum,
respectively, repayable in 7 years from the respective issue dates.
Bond Il carries an option by the bondholder to redeem 3 years after
the issuance.

The aggregate carrying amounts of the Bonds are HK$113,797,000
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$111,451,000), which approximate
their fair values. The carrying amounts of the Bonds are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

MR2017F3A31H  ARABEBASE
B Bc & 8 € BT ) % 5l 484,000,000/% T
(2016 %F : 84,000,0007% 7T ) } 37,000,000
77T (2016 4F : 37,000,000/ 7T ) Z &% —
MMEFZ(HBEF])EH EEFEX
7 556.0% (20164 : 6.0%) } 4.5%(2016
F:45%) BRASBEZHITHHR7F
NEE - BF M TEHFFEARERT
RNEITHIEIFERES— -

BR2017F3A31H  EHZEREMES LS
113,797,000 7T (2016 4 : 111,451,000 7
7o) BERNVEES - EF 2REBENE
JCETE ©
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31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 EIEFTER
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BAAEBREIBMITE DGR EE E R
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current ENHFi B R E GRS - BELERERH Y
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same RE— SR - BIR IREFFERE
fiscal authority. ERAGET R -
The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEFHBEEERBEZOMAT ¢

As at 31 March

M3 A31H
2017 2016
2017 2016 fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Deferred tax assets: IEEFIEEE ¢
— To be recovered within 12 months — B 2@ A ik E (266) (87)
Deferred tax liabilities: RLEHEAE
— To be recovered after more than — ERBBE 1218 B & U@

12 months 4,132 3,980
Deferred tax liabilities, net EXERIAE RS 3,866 3,893
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFSTIRE c EBEH T
follows:

As at 31 March

R3H31H
2017 2016
2017 5 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
At beginning of the year REH 3,893 4,208
Recognised in the consolidated statement RizE2mEBRARANTER
of comprehensive income (27) (315)
At end of the year R 3,866 3,893
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EEFTEF (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BEEMGHEERAEEREERNZES (K
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances ZER MBI EZHERBANZE&HEE) W
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Provisions for
collective
impairment of
loans
receivable Total
JEE RS
AR #HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 April 2015 M20156F4H1H - -
Charged to the consolidated a2 EW AR AR
statement of comprehensive income (122) (122)
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H (122) (122)
Charged to the consolidated a2 EBR AR AR
statement of comprehensive income (111) (111)
At 31 March 2017 ©K201743A31H (233) (233)

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IRFIETE

HK$’000

FET

At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 A 1H 4,208
Charged to the consolidated statement of REra 2 mEmB AR AR

comprehensive income (193)

At 31 March 2016 MK20164F3 A31H 4,015
Charged to the consolidated statement of RirE2ERAR AR

comprehensive income 84

At 31 March 2017 M2017%€3 A31H 4,099

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets of HK$309,000 (2016: HK$23,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$1,875,000 (2016: HK$139,000) that can be carried
forward indefinitely against future taxable income. No deferred tax
assets had been recognised in respect of these losses, as it was
uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits would be available to

allow utilisation of the carried forward tax losses.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

201743 A31H » 3t € %8 41,875,000
7 7T (2016 4F © 139,00078 7T ) 2 7] £ R &f
L DU S R R ER B A 2 BB A
FAKETAERCEERBEER
309,000 7T (2016 F : 23,0008 7T ) » I
ARZEEBHREERBEE  BAN
THRETERHEMNEETEABBEEAER

HEE -
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32 COMMITMENTS 32 XiE
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor KERERE — AEBEALEEA
The Group leases out its investment properties to independent third AREFRBRNABEZREHER ZME
parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The VE=ZAFHEEEDE - HENF1E2
lease term ranges from 1 to 2 years, and the lease agreements are £ HERZEINASARBIETIEHES
renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate. & -
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable WEBIEEYE T RGEKETRY - B
operating leases in respect of the investment properties are as ZARRFERESBBOT -
follows:
As at 31 March
M3HA31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 1 year 15K 1,895 2,059
Within 2-5 years 2E5FN 132 404
2,027 2,463
The Company did not have any significant commitments at 31 March MH2017F 3 A31H  RARIWETEMEKR
2017 (2016: Nil). EAE (2016 6F « 4E) ©
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BEEAIRTZS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the At e A Re itk B —H AR —FH
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and R ERRITEEATE N2 AT
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they THEEHSEREBEBAZE 2 AT IR
are subject to common control or common significant influence. =Y =gz}
The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried out At AN £ B B H BE RS INEL = 2017 &
between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of K2016FE3 B3I AL FEERABXEERBIE
business during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, and FETZEARS  LARR2017 F %2016
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2017 FIAN BB 54 o
and 2016.
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXBELIRS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following ARSI D TR EEIN - AE
significant transactions were undertaken by the Group with EHEAE A ETZEALSUT o

related parties.

Year ended 31 March
HZE3AZIHIFE

2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT
Interest expense paid to a fellow subsidiary 1 ¥ — & & Z & A &7
— Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited — X@&EXER AT
(“Tin Ching Industrial”) ([RBEXEDZFEAZ 4,091 4,416
Interest expense on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary was e —RR R B A B RIEZ M EH
charged at effective interest rate of 6.5% (2016: 6.5%) per YR E B EF R6.5% (2016 F
annum. 6.5% ) Y BN °

1 40 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

(c)

Tin Ching Industrial, a fellow subsidiary, provided the Group
with a loan facility with a limit of HK$150,000,000 (2016:
HK$150,000,000), of which the Group utilised an amount of
HK$69,700,000 (2016: HK$88,951,000) as at 31 March 2017.

The amount was unsecured, interest bearing at effective
interest rate of 6.5% (2016: 6.5%) per annum on the
outstanding amount, and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of the amount due to a fellow subsidiary is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Key management compensation

33

BMAERS (%)

(b) EF—RERERNEARNKE
RANBARXSEEEANEEREE
@A - fRE8/5 150,000,000 70 (2016
£ : 150,000,000/ L) + ANEE R 2017
3 A31 BEBAEA 69,700,000 7T
(2016 4F : 88,951,000/87T) °

ZRBAERE  REERIEERT
FIZE6.5% (2016 F : 6.5%) 7H 2 MA
BRERER - BN —ERERMNBAR
B2 R EABTAHE °

(c) TEEEREHM

Year ended 31 March
HESASIALFE

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Salaries and bonus e BRI 7,672 7,591
Share option expense B 402 1,842
Other benefits E b iEF 840 840
Pension costs RIRE A

— defined contribution plans — REHKETE 108 108
8,922 10,381

EBAEEEEERAR

2017 55 1 41
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34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34 #AQFEBRIT
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (a) B RE
As at 31 March
M3 A31H
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Assets &=
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARZIHE 482,948 484,562
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 482,948 484,562
Current assets REEE
Tax recoverable Al Y B R IR = 140
Cash and cash equivalents RBekReEEY 384 76
Total current assets REEELE 384 216
Total assets EEAR 483,332 484,778
Equity fER
Equity attributable to the owners of EABEE AEGER
the Company
Share capital [N 4,150 4,150
Reserves B 363,831 367,785
Total equity SRR 367,981 371,935
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B S RHAERFIE 1,393 1,392
Tax payable JERTFRIR 161 -
Total current liabilities BB ERAE 1,554 1,392
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bonds EE 113,797 111,451
Total non-current liabilities kBB ERE 113,797 111,451
Total liabilities =Rtk 115,351 112,843
Total equity and liabilities ERkEBEEE 483,332 484,778
Net current liabilities FRBEEFE (1,170) (1,176)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABARE 481,778 483,386

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company

KRB BEARR R (&)
(b) EDBHELSEH

(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share Capital payment retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
IR AEER (BHER)/
BiEE BAGE  <NRGEE REEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL
Balance at 1 April 2015 R201554 B 18268 103,665 260,829 - 6,101 370595
Total comprehensive income fortheyear ~ EE2HEWALE = - = 10,183 10,183
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Employee share option scheme: EERRE
— Value of employee services —EERBER - - 2,777 - 2,777
Dividends relating to 2015 EB0155kE - - - (7,885) (7,885)
Dividends relating to 2016 BE016F2HE - - - (7,885) (7.885)
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016F3 B 31 Az Eth 103,665 260,829 2,177 514 367,785
Representing K
Reserves & 103,665 254,189 2,777 514 361,145
Proposed final dividend BEAERE - 6,640 - - 6,640
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016 53R 31 Az fth 103,665 260,829 2,777 514 367,785
Balance at 1 April 2016 R2016F4 1 B2 &E8 103,665 260,829 2,177 514 367,785
Total comprehensive income forthe year ~ £E2EWALE - - - 8,734 8,734
Transactions with owners BRBAZRS
Employee share option scheme: EERRETE
— Value of employee services —EERBER - - 479 13 502
Dividends relating to 2016 BBE16F2HE - - - (6,640) (6,640)
Dividends relating to 2017 EB017ERE - - - (6,640) (6,640)
Balance at 31 March 2017 R201753 B 31 Az &th 103,665 260,829 3,256 (3919) 363,831
Representing i
Reserves e 103,665 256,264 3,256 (3919) 359,266
Proposed final dividend BERERE - 4,565 - - 4565
Balance at 31 March 2017 R2017F3 531 B2 EH 103,665 260,829 3256 (3919) 363,831
BERECEEEEAERAA

2017 F 3R
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34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34 ZAQTBERREE)
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (Continued) (b) ENRIRERE (&)
The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the RAF 2 BN EERRARATRG £
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the ARl AREREEAKEZHEA
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation prior to the listing of RIEEFEZ A FEBEARRRET
the Company’s share, over the nominal value of the Company’s VABAER bt iR (7 2 B < 8158 -

share issued in exchange therefor.

Under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company RIEFSESARE - ARIARET
may make distributions to its shareholders out of the capital BRATEEARREBREZRRELS
reserves in certain circumstances. ik °

1 44 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

YEYEYIR

As at 31 March 2017 72201743 431 H

Property
L/ES

Use

Rz

Remaining
lease terms

BRI

Percentage of

interest attributable to
our Company
AARELERBE DL

1. Unit No. 2 on 7th Floor
Sunray Industrial Centre
No. 610 Cha Kwo Ling Road
Kowloon

HE

HKREEE6105%
EMIEHL
7TE2E

2.  Flat E on 10/F of
Block 3 (Orchid Court)
New Town Plaza (Phase )
Nos. 2-8 Sha Tin Centre Street
Shatin
New Territories
R
W H
Y HIEE 2-85%
kT RS (5 =H51)
3B (EHIR)
1018 E=

3. Unit No. 6A on 25th Floor
Tower Two
Lippo Centre
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong
Bk
TIEB LI
NEFDL
23
251EBAE

Godown
BE

Residential
*=

Office
N

Medium term

T

Medium term

R EH

Medium term

2

100%

100%

100%

BEREEEEARARA
2017 3R
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h BB R

RESULTS 4

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 2016 4F 20154 20144 2013 4F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FH&TT FETT FHETT FETT FHET

Revenue = 103,658 111,273 99,267 81,209 66,420
Profit and total comprehensive ~ ZNA BB AJE(

income for the year attributable  4E/& % &

to owners of the Company FEUWALE 46,299 48,061 52,876 40,532 35,814

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XERE&E

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 2016 4F 20154 20144 20134F
HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$O000
FH&TT FET FHET FET FET

Total assets BELRRE 1,006,933 854,569 696,873 621,061 463,370
Total liabilities BE4RER 510,353 391,600 268,972 227,361 217,997
Total equity - Faeg ek 496,580 462,969 427,901 393,700 245,373

1 46 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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GLOSSARY

AR

In this annual report, unless or otherwise further expressed, the
following expressions have the following meanings:

“Board”
=3

“CG Code”
[EEE<FR ]

“Company” or “our Company”
NGB NG

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ZRIRE ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“EasyLend Finance”

[ZE#A ]

“GI’Oup”, “our GI’Oup”, “We”, “our”
or “us”

(=[RS HEM]

“HKS”
M
“HKICPA”
[EEEHAAR]

“HKMA”
[€ER]

“HK Finance”

[EBRER

RARFHR - BXBSHHIESN - THARLA
BIAT®E :

the board of Directors

E=xg

“Corporate Governance Code” and “Corporate Governance Report”
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIMT ST A E 2 (R EEIRTAD RKEEEIRRE)

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange

EEEESREERAE  —ERRASHSHMKZ 2 ERAE - RGN
FREIR £

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
H R RIATE T RE

the director(s) of the Company

RRABES

EasylLend Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability with a money lenders licence registered under MLO,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
SEREEERAR  —HREBTMA L2 ERAR] - FHHERBEHEA GG
T MEARR - TMARARHEEZEMNEAR]

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRF MENE QT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEERET

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BAGRIAE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EETRERR

Hong Kong Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability with a money lenders licence registered under MLO,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EREEMBERAR  —HRBEBTMA L2 ERAR  HHEREBEREAK
BIFEM 2 MEAMR - MARRRREE2ENE AR

EBEEEEERAT
2017 5§
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GLOSSARY
o=

AR 5

“Hong Kong”

(&%

“Listing Date”

[Ed B

“Listing Rules”
[ A ]

“MLO”
[ R fEA A

“Model Code”
[R2E<FAl]

“SFO”

[ 5% RS &A
“Share Option Scheme”
[ B8R A=t &

“Share(s)”

[ B2 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[R=R]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 3 PR

“Tin Ching Holdings”
[ RGRER

“Tin Ching Industrial”

[RREX]

1 48 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
AR KB EEFRITTEHR

2 October 2013, being the first date when the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange
2013F 10 A 2R - BIRGHMNEE R ERER L2 BE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B 22 e o AR Al

the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEBEEBIZE 163 EHEAEDD

“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAMESTPAE 2 ETETAERFETESFR S ZRLETA)

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIFE 571 E(EFLARGRH)

A share option scheme adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then
sole shareholder of our Company on 4 September 2013
R2013F9 A4 BRIBAR B ERME— RN 2 EERBERRN 2 BIREE

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RARIRATEREE0.01 B T2 HiEAR

the holder(s) of Share(s)
BHFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERSHMBERAT

Tin Ching Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William, and a Controlling Shareholder of our Company
REBEBRARAR  —HREBREZFSTMKIL 2 AR - HEREEEE IR
RBEEEEB 0% e - WARRE 2 FRRR

Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and owed as to 100% interest by Tin Ching Holdings
RREFXFARRAT  —MREBFMA L2 AR - BRBERES 100% E
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